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What moves us: Our Mission

These are the values that define the kind of service we deliver to our
customers:

Commitment | Integrity | Trust | Customer-Oriented
Continuous Development | Team-based [ Social Responsibility

We believe that our people are our foremost asset; and the union of our
people into teams translates to trust and fairness, shared authority and
responsibility. We strive for open communication and transparency;,
motivating each member of the LBC family with compensation and
recognition; working hard towards continuous improvement of our services
to achieve customer satisfaction. Our team members and our customer’s
satisfaction is ultimately what assures the continuity of LBC.

What drives us: Our Vision

By 2020, LBC shall be the access and delivery solutions provider of choice,
professionally and technologically equipped to serve Filipino families and
business entities through total customer experience.
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Across the World:
In The Service of the Global Filipino

LBC Express serves millions of Filipinos around the globe in over 20 countries, with
a 5,300-strong network comprised of branches, partner and agents.

P Countries | % Warehouses | Cargo and Remittance Branches | “P Partner Agent Countries | Partner Agent Branches

¢ W a

Serves over 5,300 branches, partners, Over 6,500
20 countries agents worldwide employees

*As of end 2016
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In the Philippines:
Unparalleled Presence

1,252 owned branches
159 hubs
21 distribution centers

*As of end 2016
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Retail Services: Philippines

Next day delivery for documents, parcels and cargo

24-Hour express deliveries to anywhere in the Philippines

N-Pouch

N-Pack o Kilo Box
I- Our N-Pouch Service caters to the Our N-Pack Service is the safe, .

Our Kilo Box Service allows you to
nationwide delivery of documents secure  choice for  passports, send items such as small appliances
in a secure and timely manner. - cellphones, gadgets, and other

parcels.

and gifts anytime, without incurring
additional cost.

International delivery for documents, parcels and cargo

We also offer delivery of documents, parcels and cargo to over 200 destination countries all over the world.

*LBC Drum available only
inbound from Middle East

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Retail Services: Philippines

Retail Money Express Services

Interest Peso
Padala (IPP)

@ Cash Pick-up Service that allows
customers to send and receive
remittance through LBC's more than
1,200 strategically located branches
nationwide.

@ Beneficiaries can  withdraw the
money immediately once the sender
has made a payment.

Door-to-Door
Delivery

@ Remittances are delivered directly to
the beneficiaries’ doorstep,
providing an attractive option for
situations in  which beneficiaries
cannot visit a branch.

@ LBC offers next day delivery for
"Pesopak” in almost all areas in the
Philippines.

)
Remit to
Account
@ Remittance service that allows

customers to remit funds straight to

the recipients bank accounts.
Through LBC's partnership with
commercial  banks, funds are

credited seamlessly.

Bills
Express (BX)

® An over-the-counter payment
facility which offers the service to
receive/collect payments through
over 1,200 strategically located LBC
branches.
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Corporate Services: Philippines

LBC’s Logistics Solutions is a combination of air, sea and land freight to

,f;-.:/" maximize efficiency and ensure speed to market nationwide and abroad.
= By combining our products and extensive network, we offer a seamless mix of

freight solutions to match delivery schedules and cost requirements.

A A\
}vﬁ COURIER AND PARCELS GENERAL CARGO
AN

Cold Chain Services

A We offer dedicated, fully-monitored and temperature-controlled movement
of sensitive products anywhere in the Philippines, for volumes of Container or
Full Truck Load (FTL).

Send Tipid

SEND-TIPID is our PREPAID service offering (specifically for our Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprise clients) of express delivery. We offer door-to-door services for your parcels
anywhere in the Philippines.

Non-Vessel Operating Common Carrier (NVOCC)

ﬁg As experts in logistics, we have the capability to import and export domestic
and international cargo - moving a full (or less than full) container shipment
to gateway ports.

Specialized Logistics

< By understanding our clients’ concerns and needs, we provide specialized
= solutions that will drive value for their business to ensure quality service to their
customers nationwide.

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Corporate Services: Philippines

We offer a wide range of value-added services to improve our corporate clients
=M overall needs and business performance.

PICKING AND m SORTING AND :t INVENTORY
PACKING BA@E KITTING 1— ]| MANAGEMENT

Warehouse Management as an Outsourced Service (WMAAS)

Warehouse Management as an Outsourced Service (WMAAS) is a unique offering from LBC. We will
ensure control of your goods and assure you that our services will provide a value-added role in
making your supply chains more effective and efficient.

Corporate Remittance

nl Through LBC’s partnerships with commercial banks, we offer Cash Management
Solutions to fit your money movement needs through our Corporate Remittance
Services.

> N/
CASH DISBURSEMENT II CASH COLLECTION

@ Accessibility and multi-point payment and collection access - through its more than
1,200 branches nationwide, LBC provides a better and secure mode of payment and
collection from our clients and customers, even in remote places.

Annual Report 2016



Our Business at a Glance

Retail Logistics

Service
Offerings

Revenue
Contribution

Key
Financials

Key
Operating
Metrics?

©

Courier, Air Cargo, °
Balikbayan Boxes

571% .

Revenue: o
Php 4964.00m

On time delivery rate” e
90.0%

Sorting efficiency®
99.8%

Business
Solutions

Specialized Corporate
solutions, freight
forwarding, supply
chain

29.4%

Revenue:
Php 2,55787m

Number of corporate
customers: 1,723

Remittance
Money
Express

Branch retail services,
Prepaid remittance
Cards, Mobile and
Online Remit Services

12.6%

Revenue:
Php 1,099.84m

Number of
transactions:
15,680,353

Service locations:
3,849

Logistics Services Money Transfer Services

Corporate Logistics

Bill Payment Collection

Secure
Trade

Bill payments and
corporate remittance
payouts

0.08%

Revenue:
Php73.69m

Number of
transactions:
15,288,730

Service locations:
1,252

Notes: 1. Allfigures as of FY16 ended Nov 30
2. With exemptions of extreme situations
3. Percentage of correctly routed items over total items accepted

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Key Performance Indicators
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Notes: 5 Number of parcels or cargo delivered by the courier measured on a daily basis;
1 Numbers are as of November 30 of the respective years computed based on 6 work days per week
2 With exemptions of extreme situations such as force majeure and house closed; 6 Percentage of correctly-routed items over total items accepted
also includes Pesopak deliveries 7 Includes print & mail and Specialized Corporate Solutions services
3 Monthly average 8 As of financial year end
4 For Philippines only 9 Includes LBC Express and Subsidiaries
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Key Profit and Loss items!
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Revenue by segment’
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Key Balance Sheet Items’

12
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Cash Flow Analysis*
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1

Fiscal year end on November 30
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Our Story: The LBC Timeline

LBC Air Cargo ("LBC Express")
became the 1st Filipino-owned
courier company wtih time sensitive
cargo deliveries

Luzon Brokerage Corporation was
founded.

Within this decade, it operated as a
brokerage and air cargo agent, prompting
the company to change its name to LBC
Cargo, Inc. before it evolved to become an
express delivery agent.

14

Pioneered 24-hour
door-to-door
delivery

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Our Story: The LBC Timeline

LETTERS/DOCU
PACKAGES

Expanded its Money Transfer Services

se?
coll

ment by offering bill payment
ection services in the Philippines

1980s

Formally changed its name to LBC
Express, Inc. and officially entered the
domestic remittance business.

By 1987, LBC Express commenced its
international money transfer operations
by establishing relationships with agents
and affiliates in the United States and
steadily expanding its network globally
to provide fulfillment services for
inbound international remittances.

Annual Report 2016

LBC Express began offering
corporate remittance fulfillment
services for SSS, payroll and
insurance benefits on behalf of
third party partners; and
remittance  encashments on
behalf of its local remittance
partner Palawan Pawnshop.

LBC Express is now known as
the market leader in domestic air
freight forwarding, with a sizable
41.8% market share in the
industry.

15



Our Story: The LBC Timeline

Rebranded, and created a new
corporate slogan “We Like To Move
It,” also catalyzing an emphasis in
corporate culture.

)
Y N

Achieved 62% market share of overall
domestic express in the Philippines.

16 LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Our Story: The LBC Timeline

Listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange, as
LBC Express Holdings, Inc.

)

Launched its first global brand
ambassador, Miss Kris Aquino.

Annual Report 2016 17



> Miguel A. Camahort // Chairman, President &
Chief Executive Officer

At the end of the day, delivering

is our business, but making sure we

do that well enough so that we can deliver
the joy behind every parcel and remittance
that goes through us, is our responsibility.

18
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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

2016 was a great year for the Philippine
logistics industry. Because of increased
economic activity in the ASEAN region,
the recent ratification of the ASEAN
Economic (AEC) Framework, the entire
business was pegged to grow at by
staggering $41.3 billion across a
four-year timeline.

This makes it a very opportune time for
our brand, LBC Express, to talk about the
opportunities that we were fortunate
enough to leverage on so that this once
humble, fully Filipino-owned company
could grow to become the blue-chip
enterprise that it is now.

Despite local political and economic
turmoil, LBC Express was bolstered by
globalization and the rise of e-commerce;
factors that actually played a key role in
the growth of the entire industry. And
more than anything, the existing
challenges ultimately became a platform
for LBC Express to refine their systems
and process to better serve their market
and reshape the Philippines’ logistics
landscape.

Annual Report 2016

The fact is, in this industry, we have to face
a different problem everyday. Challenges
will shift and evolve following the times;
it's very fluid. And finding the right
solutions will require a lot of imagination
and creativity. But with an approach
anchored on LBC’s values, mission and
vision, our company continues to reach
new heights.

When we wrote our vision, we
committed to becoming the access and
delivery solutions provider of choice by
2020. We wanted to do this by ensuring
that we have the professional and
technological capacity to serve Filipino
families and businesses through a
well-rounded customer experience. And
2016, fortunately, proves that we are
continuously improving our company's
margins, earnings, cash flows and
returns, simultaneous with LBC
consistently improving operations and
customer service.




Php (in millions)
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Our net core income from LBC Express,
Inc. was at P920.2M, a 117% increase from
the previous vyear, while total
comprehensive income was at P1.1058B, a
238% increase from previous year. Net
income of LBC Express Holdings, Inc., on
the other hand, increased by a staggering
120%, reaching P9139 million by end of
the year, due to the rise in air and courier
services driven by improved cost of air
and sea freight.

10.6%

3 year CAGR: 18.4%

2013 2014 2015

2016

e EBITDA

« EBITDA Margin

Current assets are at P4,601.5 million, a 36
percent increase from last year’s
numbers, with  service revenues
increasing by 9 percent due to the
strength of the logistics segment in retail
and corporate sales. Revenues from the
logistics segment grew by 20 percent,
due in large part to the additional 48 new
branches that opened in the

Philippines and the incremental increase
in the company’s volumes from cargo
forwarding services during the year.

Because of our 5,300-strong network
comprised of branches, partners and
agents, our customer base is massive and
diverse. LBC's history and heritage
allowed us to grow through the years
bolstered by the trust that loyal patrons
continue to provide, even to this day.
Each investment made, whether it's
driven by expansion, technology,
convenience, is meant to address what
our customers needs. And these
investments are paying off.




We're now in a position that allows us to
expect this positive financial momentum
and company growth to continue well
into the next few years. We will continue
our successful ventures with key
partners, expansions towards
automation, modernization of our fleets
and are optimistic about seeing high
returns, which is essential to growing our
company.

We want to further
expand our coverage in
the Philippines and
around the world.

We have the facilities.

We have the know-how.
We have the advantage.
We'll continue to expand our network,
and get closer to the communities
outside of the cities. We'll also be rolling
out more products that are very much

related to the whole supply chain,
warehousing, etc.

At the end of the day, delivering is our
business, but making sure we do that well
enough so that we can deliver the joy
behind every parcel that goes through us,
is our responsibility. Last year
demonstrates the commitment to our
goals and ideals. The years to come
define a future that's bright with
possibility—and we hope everyone, our
customers, team members, stakeholders,
and partners continue to lend their
confidence in our ability to not only grow
LBC, but our dedication to stay true to our
company'’s vision.

Miguel A. Camahort

Annual Report 2016
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Operational
Highlights
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Put-to-Light:
llluminating the Future of Sorting

SUCCESSFUL IMPLEMENTATION

SORTING PUT TO EASE
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LBC Announces Branch
Growth Plans for 2017

“LBC Express is poised to open 100 stores
nationwide in 2017" says LBC President,
Miguel Camahort.

“Our branch expansion is driven by our
customer’s expectations for convenience and
ease. We continue to push for growth so that
we can meet the needs of our customers who
demand only the best when it comes to their
padala,”

LBC is also planning to open in untapped areas

where the convenience of a reliable express , - gREMITFANCE
delivery service is critical. Additional branches = PAVM;ZL_,MWTS& MAIL
for busy urban areas will also enable LBC to PARCELS & BOXES
create a seamless branch experience where CARGO & LOGISTICS

customer service is at the forefront.
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LBC Express Strengthens Initiatives
to Prevent Money Laundering

26 LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Araw ng
Aming Ligaya
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LBC Business Solutions Seeks the
first SME Company of the Year with
Asia CEO Awards

28 LBC Express Holdings, Inc.
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LBC Express Inc. Partners
with ActiveOne Health Inc.
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For Any Concerns,
Call 800-LBC-111

30 LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Re-Shaping LBC from the Ground,

Up with Nwow

LBC Express, Inc. undertakes a new strategy that
would not only increase customer satisfaction but
also improve team efficiency and productivity.

The system is called New Ways of Working
(NWOW), a collective set of solutions or elements
to resolve the identified gaps and findings in each
level and in the management control system,”
Javier Mantecon, Chief Marketing Officer.

HOW THE NWOW IS MADE

“There’s a lot of activities before achieving the
NWOW,” Mantecon said. “The methodology
goes first with a focus design. So we review
step-by- step all the activities that are being done
by any associate in every department/division.”

After reviewing the Activity List, the team filters
which ones create value and which does not.

Annual Report 2016

“Then we call in the subject-matter experts, the
operations heads, the team heads, and we have
deliberations on processes. Can this be removed?
Can this be streamlined? If we change this, how
will it affect other divisions?”

The team draws-up the process and put a
management control system to measure it while it
is being implemented. Afterwards, they hold a
strategic integration with all the Business Unit (BU)
heads including Miguel Camahort, LBC President
and Chief Operating Officer.

“We sign and we agree that this will become the
new ways and this is how it will be monitored.
Then, that’s when we officially call it the NWOW,”
Mantecon said.

“It's not a one-way discussion. It's actually a
collaborative effort of all the operating heads and
business unit owners.”

NWOW was piloted into three different branches
around NCR as a test to see if the suggested tools
and new processes will be effective. Results from
this pilot would determine whether the suggested
NWOW would be applicable to other regions.

31



My Idol My Hero - Meet ka-LBCs
who go above and beyond the call of duty
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LBC Inks Partnership
Deal with Philab
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LBC Express, Inc. Finalizes
Partnership with Ramco Systems

"Working with Ramco Systems was not a
difficult  decision. Anchored on LBC’s
service-centric values, and bolstered by our
intent to focus on delivering value and joy in
every aspect of our business, LBC looks
forward to how we can continue to grow the
business with partners who share our interest
by our side,” says LBC Chief People Officer,
Jhayner V. Bhufi.

In an effort to streamline internal operations,
the deal will see LBC Express applying an
automated system of HR, time and
attendance, leave management, employee
self service and recruitment. It will be initially
rolled out locally, but will eventually be
implemented across LBC's global operations in
an effort to strengthen engagement and
efficiency of our team. Moving towards a
unified solution will thus allow LBC Express to
focus on more strategic HR initiatives that
support the company'’s inherent values.
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Moving Lives
Through the Kabayan
Corner Initiatives

g
AEvosToAID CARGO!
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Corporate Social Responsibility

36
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FOUNDATION
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Disaster Relief

Community Development

38 LBC Express Holdings, Inc.
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Education

LBC's efforts in education included a partnership
with the Department of Education for teacher
training that aims to equip public school teachers
with the skills and tools to improve quality of
education in Cavite and Laguna. The foundation
has also partnered with World Vision Philippines,
sponsoring 150  children from  various
developmental areas, to give them access to
healthcare and education. As part of this vision,
LBC also extends its support to the Library
Renewal Partnership, who hopes to build 200
community libraries by 2020 thus promoting
literacy in the nation.

Drawing on both their internal and customer
network, LBC Foundation continues to ship
books from the US to public schools around the
nation for the Datu Wali Mission and regularly
ships donations for Project Pearls, an initiative
that seeks to bring much-needed basic
necessities to various underserved areas in the
country.

But being a developing country, the Philippines
faces a lot of challenges, and as a foundation, it is
our goal to be able to respond to the most
pressing matters. However, anchored on LBC
Foundation’s goal of moving people forward
through empowerment, our next step is to find a
way to contribute to nation building, at a
grassroots level. To that end, LBC Foundation’s
focus will not center on moving the Filipino youth
forward to have access to quality education—a
facet of development that the foundation
believes is an equalizer, instilling pride, dignity
and responsibility among the receiver.

The goal now is all about working together with
them, making them partners for the country’s
growth.
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Corporate Governance

40

The Board of Directors and Management, and
employees of LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. (the
“Company”) commit themselves to the principles of
good governance, as contained in its Revised Manual
on Corporate Governance approved in May 2017 and
July 2014. The Board of Directors and Management,
employees and shareholders, believe that corporate
governance is a necessary component of what
constitutes sound strategic business management and
will therefore undertake every effort necessary to
create awareness within the organization as soon as
possible.

The Board of Directors

The Articles of Incorporation of the Company provides
that the Board of Directors shall be composed of nine
(9) members. As of 31 December 2016, the Board of
Directors of the Company consists of seven (7)
directors, with two (2) seats vacant for election.

As required by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC"), the Company, being a
publicly-listed company, is mandated to nominate two
(2) independent directors. Thus, of the seven (7)
directors of the Company, two (2) were elected as
independent directors in accordance with the By-Laws
of the Company.

Pursuant to the SEC Memorandum Circular 19-16, the
Board of Directors of the Company resolved to
increase the number of its independent directors from
2 to 3, subject to the amendment of the Company’s
By-Laws reflecting such recommendation.

In 2016, the Board of Directors held 6 meetings, five
(5) special board meetings and one (1) organizational
meeting. All the members of the Board of Directors
were present during such meetings, as follows:

2016 Board Meetings

Director 18 May 27 May 29 July 2016 7 October 11 25
2016 2016 Organizational 2016 November November
Special Special Special 2016 2016
Special Special
Miguel Angel P P P P P
A. Camahort
Rene E. p p P p p
Fuentes
Enrique V. P p P p p
Rey, Jr.
Augusto G. p p p p p
Gan
Solita V.
Delantar p P p p p
(Independent)
Mark Werner
J. Rosal P P P P P
*Present

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



To assist the Board of Directors in discharging its duties and responsibilities, the Board constituted: (1) the Audit
Committee; (2) the Nomination Committee; and (3) the Compensation and Remuneration Committee which directly
report to the Board in accordance with duly approved procedures. As of 31 December 2016, the board committees
and its members are as follows:

2016 Board Meetings

Director Audit Nomination Compensation and
Committee Committee Remuneration

Committee

Miguel Angel A. Camahort Member Member Member

Rene E. Fuentes P P P

Enrique V. Rey, Jr. P P p

Augusto G. Gan P p P

Solita V. Delantar

(Independent) v i v

Luis N. Yu, Jr.

(Independent) v i i

Miguel Angel

A. Camahort v . v

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for company ' s financial reporting, internal control system, internal and external
audit processes, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Audit Committee consists of at least three
(3) directors, who shall preferably have accounting and finance backgrounds, one (1) of whom shall be an
independent director and another with audit experience. Each member shall have adequate understanding at least
or competence at most of the Company’s financial management systems. The Chair of the Audit Committee shall be
an independent director.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors to review and evaluate, among others, the
qualifications of all persons nominated to the Board and other appointments that require Board approval in
accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications provided under the Company’s By-Laws and relevant laws.
The Nomination Committee shall have at least three (3) members, one of whom must be an independent director.

Compensation and Remuneration Committee

The Compensation and Remuneration Committee is tasked by the Board of Directors to, among others, establish a
formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on remuneration of directors and officers to ensure that
their compensation is consistent with the corporation’s culture, strategy and the business environment in which it
operates. The Compensation and Remuneration Committee shall have at least three (3) members, one (1) of whom
shall be an independent director.

Annual Report 2016
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Pursuant to the SEC Memorandum Circular 19-16, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to reconstitute
the following committees: (1) the Audit Committee; (2) the Corporate Governance Committee which shall replace
and assume the functions of the Nomination Committee and the Compensation and Remuneration Committee; (3)
the Board Risk Oversight Committee which shall be responsible for the oversight of the Company’s Enterprise Risk
Management System; and (4) the Related Party Transactions Committee, which shall be tasked with reviewing all
material related party transactions of the Company. The establishment of such additional committees shall be
effective upon the approval of the Company’s By-Laws and the adoption of the respective Charters of said
committees.

External Auditor

The external auditor contributes to the enforcement of good governance through independent examination of the
financial records and reports of the Company. The external auditor of the Company is the accounting firm of SyCip
Gorres Velayo & Co. (“SGV & Co."). The Board, upon the recommendation of the Company’s Audit Committee,
approved the reappointment of SGV & Co. as the Company’s independent auditor for 2016 based on their
performance and qualifications.

The Company has not had any material disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with its current
independent auditor for the same periods or any subsequent interim period. SGV & Co. has neither shareholdings
in the Company nor any right, whether legally enforceable or not, to nominate persons or to subscribe for the
securities of the Company. The foregoing is in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in
the Philippines set by the Board of Accountancy and approved by the Professional Regulation Commission.

Audit and Audit-related Fees

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed for each of the last two years for professional services
rendered by SGV & Co.:

2016 2015
In Millions (PHP) Php 7987,500 Php 8,035,000
Audit and Audit-Related
Total Php 7987500 Php 8,035,000

*Audit and Audit-Related Fees. This category includes the audit of annual financial statements, review of interim financial
statements, and services that are normally provided by the independent auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or engagements for those calendar years.

Compliance Officer

The Board of Directors appoints a Compliance Officer who shall report directly to the Chair of the Board. The
Compliance Officer is tasked with, among others, monitoring the compliance by the Company with the rules and
regulations of regulatory agencies such as the SEC and the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”), and submitting
reports in accordance with the rules of such agencies and other pertinent laws. Updates and the consolidated
changes to the Annual Corporate Governance Report of the Company for year 2016 were submitted to the SEC last
10 January 2017. Further, the Company submitted last 31 March 2017 its Compliance Report on Corporate
Governance for year 2016.

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



As of 31 December 2016, the Company has complied with the principles and practices contained in its Manual on
Good Corporate Governance. There were no sanctions imposed on any director, officer, or employee for
non-compliance.

Disclosure and Transparency

The Company acknowledges that the essence of corporate governance is transparency. Thus, all material
information about the Company which could adversely affect its viability or the interest of its stockholders and other
stakeholders are publicly and timely disclosed by the Company. The Company and its Board of Directors commit at
all times to full disclosure of material information dealings, and as such, has caused the filing of all required
information through the appropriate Exchange mechanisms for listed companies and submissions to the
commission for the interest of its stockholders and other stakeholders.

Commitment to Good Corporate Governance
The Company has established, and continues to implement and adopt, corporate governance rules in accordance

with the rules and regulations of the SEC. As such, the manuals adopted and issued by the Company have been
revised to be in line with the policies and rules of the SEC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Direclors
LBC Express Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of LBC Express Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries
{the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2016
and 2015, and the consolidated statemenis of comprehensive income, consolidated statemenis of changes
in equily and consolidated statements of cash lows lor each ol the three vears in the period ended
December 31, 2016, and notes 1o the consolidated linancial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respecis,
the consohdated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2016 and 20115, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2016 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audif
of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountiants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit of the consolidated linancial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fullilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention Lo Note 235 Lo the consolidated financial statemenis which describes the uncertainty
related to the outcome of the case filed against LBC Express, Inc. (LBCE), a subsidiary, among other
respondents, by LBC Development Bank, Inc,, as represented by its receiver and liquidator, the Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation {PDIC) for collection of an alleged amount of #1.82 billion, The case is in
relation 1o a demand letter representing collection of unpaid service lees from June 2006 1o August 2011
and service charges on remittance transactions from January 2010 to September 2011, LBCE and LBC
Development Corporation, the ultimate parent company, among other defendants, filed a separate Motion
to Dismiss the Complaint on January 12, 2016, In a joint resolution dated June 28, 2016, the court
resolved 1o deny the Motions o Dismiss filed by the defendants, including LBCE. On July 18, 2016,
LBCE, together with the other delendants, filed a Motion for Reconsideration ol the Joint Resolution.

A mesnber firm of Ennst & Young Global Lmed
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PDIC then filed its Comment/Opposition on August 10, 2016, followed by the defendants” reply on
August 26, 2016, PDIC's Rejoinder on September 26, 2016, and defendants’ Sur-Rejoinder on November
16, 2016, Therealter, in an Order dated January 26, 2017, the Motion for Reconsideration was deemed
submitted for resolution. On February 23, 2017, LBCE received the court’s resolution denying the
Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution. On February 28, 2017, LBCE filed a Motion for
Extension of Time (o File Answer, asking lor additional period of 15 days, or until March 15, 2017 1o file
Answers, The ullimate outcome of the case cannot presently be determined. In the opinion of
management and in concurrence with its legal counsel, any liability of LBCE arising from the case is not
probable and estimable at this point in time. Our opinion is not modified in respect (o this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matier below, our description
ol how our audit addressed the matter is provided in thal context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Anditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statemenis section ol our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed io respond to our assessment of
the nisks of material misstatement of the consolidated linancial statements, The results ol our audil
procedures, including the procedures performed 1o address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements,

Assessment of potential liability in relation o the closure of LBC Development Bank, Inc.

The Company’s subsidiary, LBCE, among other respondents, is involved in a case filed by LBC
Development Bank, Inc., as represented by its receiver and liquidator, PDIC, for collection of an alleged
amount of 182 billion. This is significant to our audit because the determination of whether any
provision should be recognized and the estimation of potential liability resulting from this case require
significant judgment by the management given the inherent uncertainty over its outcome. The Group’s
disclosures about the case and basis of management’s assessments are included in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Audir Response

Our audit procedures focused on the evaluation of management’s assessment on whether any provision
for contingencies should be recognized and the estimation of such amount, We held discussions with
management and the Group’s legal counsel and obtained the written reply of the Group’s external legal
counsel on the status of the case and their assessment of any potential liability. We also sent a
confirmation letter to PDIC and obtained their reply which we asked the Group to reconcile with their
records.

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-15 {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2016, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2016 are expected to be made available 1o us afier the
date of this auditor’s report,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form ol assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audits of the consolidated linancial statements, our responsibility s 1o read the
other information identiflied above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal conirol as management determines is
necessary 1o enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due o lraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic aliernative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are [ree [rom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from [raud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these linancial statements,

0T
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material missiatement of the consolidated linancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 1s higher than for one resulting from error,
as [raud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis relaied o events or
conditions that may cast signilicant doubt on the Group’s abilily Lo continue as a going concern. [f we
conclude that a material uncertainty exisis, we are required Lo draw attention in our auditor’s report o
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Group 1o cease Lo continue as a
£olng CONncern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Ninancial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated linancial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevam
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

A mesnber firm of Enrst & Young Giobal Lmited
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when, in extremely rare circumsiances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Cyril Jasmin B. Valencia.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,

%‘04 B Caloncea
Cyil Jasmin B, Valencia

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 90787

SEC Accreditation No. 1229-AR-1 (Group A),
May 12, 2015, valid until May 11, 2018

Tax Identification No, 162-410-623

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-001998-74-2015,
February 27, 2015, valid until February 26, 2018

PTR No. 53908770, January 3, 2017, Makau City

March 8, 2017
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 20 and 21) £1,327,790,727 £979,102,489
Trade and other receivables (Notes 5, 14, 20and 21) 1,526,719.330 1,466,759 522
Due from related parties (Notes 14, 20 and 21) 1,107,999.329 1,321,340,063
Available-for-sale investments (Notes 9, 20 and 21) 250,937,154 -
Prepayments and other current assets (Notes 6, 20 and 21) 88,089,197 443 304 439
Total Current Assets 4,601,535,737 4210513113

Noncurrent Assets

Property and equipment (MNote 7) 840,476,927 T3, 022 204
Intangible assets (Note 8) 266,047,661 276,381 485
Available-for-sale investments (Notes 9, 20 and 21) 458,391,174 212,596,951
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 17) 274,380,370 225 645,084
Security deposits (Note 18) 226,255,209 209,930,934
Other noncurrent assets (Note 6) 70,150,604 61,806,091
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,135,701,945 1,749, 382,749
B6, 737,237,682  P5 959 595 B62
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts and other payables (Notes 10, 14, 20 and 21) £1,294,903,590  P1,832.036,409
Due to related parties (Notes 14, 20 and 21) 18,509,332 18,137,986
Current portion of notes payvable (Motes 12, 20and 21) 666,715,500 1,040,617 833
Transmissions liability (Notes 11, 20 and 21) 467,284,795 508,139,757
Current portion of lease liabilities (Motes 18, 20 and 21) 50,826,683 43 049 537
Income tax pavable 254,758,265 130,683,165
Total Current Liabilities 2,752,998,165 3,572,664,687
Moncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefit Liability (Note 19) 721,026,661 641,812,079
Motes payable - net of current portion (Notes 12, 20 and 21) 692,500,000
Lease liabilities - net of current portion (Notes 18, 20 and 21) 73,242,401 74,164,341
Other noncuwrrent liabilities (Notes 7, 20 and 21) 34,477,440 43,553 548
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1.521,246,502 759,529 968
4,274,244.667 4,332 194 655
Equity (Note 13)
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company
Capital stock 1.425.865,471 1,425.865.471
Retained earnings 782,414,079 174 498 871
Accumulated comprehensive income 305,677,402 68,411,150
2,513,956,952 1,668 775492
Non-conirolling interesis {50,963,937) (41,074,285)
Total Equity 2,462,993,015  1.627,701,207
#6,737,237,682 859590 805 862

See accompanying Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements,
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2016 2015 2014
SERVICE REVENUE (Notc 22) PR,695,402,622 B7686,474 464 B7.056,227 838
COST OF SERVICES (Note 15) 5,590,513.089 5119531 467 5284 490,318
GROSS PROFIT 3.104.889.533 2,566,942 997 1,771,737,520
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 16) 1.872.805,197 1,947,792 990 1,602,561,779
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Foreign exchange gains - net 143,233,568 108,110,678 42 048,502
Interest income (Maote 4) 2,365,500 1,539 555 374,708
Interest expense (Motes 12 and 18) (63,493,537) (43,314,537) (30,799 508)
Others- net 10,900,924 1,447 367 19,551 451
93,006,455 67,783,063 31175303
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,325,000,791 GEG,933070 200,351,044
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Naw 17) 411,150,046 270,632,174 56,940, %00
NET INCOME 913,940,745 416 300 B9 143 410 244
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
Remeasurement losses on retirement
benefin plan - net of tax (Notes 13 and 19) (11,989,538) (42,898 526) 21,302 810
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
Unrealized [air value gain (loss) on available-lor-sale
investmenis (Motes 9 and 13) 246,305,907 (6d,364.214) (6,926,152)
Currency translation gain {loss) - net 715,098 9394 034 (10,000,991 )
235,041 467 (97,868, 706) 3375667
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £1,148.952,212 P318 432 190 Pl46, 785911

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Sharcholders of the Parent Company PO21.605.612 P439 811,552 B156. 820088
Mon-controlling interesis (7.664.867) (23,510.656) (13,409 844)
NET INCOME £913,940,745 P4 16,300 89 P143 410,244
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the Parent Company P£1,158.871.8064 B343.474,642 B39 840 9]0
Non-controlling interesis (9,889.652) (25,042,452 (13,064,008)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £1,148,952.212 B31%.432 190 P146,785911
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS

PER SHARE (Note 24) £0.65 B0.29 BO.1O

Kee accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis,
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LBC EXPRESS HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2016 2013 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before meome tax P1,325,000,791 PiEG 933,070 P200,351.044
Adjustments for:
Drepreciation and amortization (Motes 7, 8, 15 and 16) 195,345,105 259,384 441 276,126,259
Interest expense (Notes 12 and 18) 63,493,537 43,314,537 30,799,508
Retirement expense, net of benelits paid and contribution
1o retwrerment plan (Notes 15,16 and 19) 62,086,673 38,622,205 98,415,401
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net (3.949,023) (1T7047T6) 12,692 602
Interest income (Note 4) (2. 365,500) (1,539,555) (374, TOK)
Cinim on sale of available-for-sale invesiments (579,059)
Loss (gain) on dispesal of property and
equipment and intangible assets (Motes 7 and 8) (443,662) (1.736.918) 103,990
Operating income before changes in working capatal 1,738,678,862 1,024 807 304 618,114,036
Changes in working capital:
Decrease (increase) m:
Trade and other receivables (59,959 B0R) (17.585,364) (412,083,251}
Due from related parties (Note 23} (51,967,085) (5234841100 (480,658,291}
Prepayments and other assets 55,215,242 (173.300.862) (127,609 390)
Security deposils (16,324,175) (37.118,592) (41,000,347)
Increase (decrease) m:
Accounts and other payables (Noe 23) (538 852 457) 85268161 555,774,263
Transmissions liability (40,854,962) 149,181,428 262,033,699
Due 1o related parties (Mote 23) 371,346 187,200,107 9,535 359
Met cash generated from operations 1,086, 306,863 694 058,772 384,106,078
Interest received 1,365,500 1,539,555 374,768
Ineome tax paid (331,353 486) (99 689, 702) (300,624,147
Met cash provided by operating activitics 757,318,877 306,808,625 83,556,699
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Eedemption of mvestments in UITF classified as
available-for-sale invesiments 1500, 00, (MY
Disposal of property and equipment and intangible assets 13,454,664 17,707,641 1,922,168
Sale of available-for-sale mvestments 991,525
Increase in other noncurrent assels (8.344.513) (6,445,494)
Advances to a stockholder (Note 1) (58,805,165)
Paymem of cash o effect reverse acquisition (1,325,365 %01)
Acquisitions of:
Intangible assets (20,471,368) (36,693, 506) (234,627,104)
Property and equipment (Note 23) (294,255,614) [312,060,184) (194.953,399)
Available-for-sale investmenis (400,757,920)
Met cash used 1n investing activities (559,383, 236) (1,722,162 509 (427.658.425)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes payable 1,423,701,286 1,791,790, 300 T14, TR0 D00
Proceeds from issuance of stocks (net of stock issuance cost) 1.369,305,608
Dnvidends pasd (Note 23) (4%,375,985)
Payments of lease habilities (53,894,808) (84,858, 055) (82,423,131)
Interest pand (Note 23) (61,773,899) (43.314.537) (30,799 308)
Payments of notes payable (L105,103,619)  (1.465952 467) {227,700.975)
Met cash generated from Mnancing aclivities 154,552,975 1,566,970,849 373,856,380
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS JS1 488,616 441,616,965 30,054,600
EFFECT OF FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANCGE
BATE CIHANGES ON CASI AND CASIH EQUIVALENTS (3,800, 3T8) 9,370,984 (11,352,638)
CASILOF THE PARENT COMPANY UPON OBTAINING
CUONTROM. - 25,120 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 979,102,489 527.891.420 500 380 308
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
EXND OF YEAR (Note 4) P1,327,790,727 POT9 102 489 P527.891,420

See accompanying Neles to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Corporate Information

LBC Express Holdings, Inc. (referred to as the “Parent Company™ or “LBCH”), formerly Federal
Resources Investment Group Inc. (FED), was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on July 12, 1993,

The ultimate parent of the Parent Company is LBC Development Corporation (LBCDC).

The Parent Company undertook an Initial Public Offering and on December 21, 2001 LBCHs
shares were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Parent Company invests, purchases or disposes real and personal property of every kind and
description, including shares of stock, bonds, debentures, notes, evidences of indebtedness, and
other sccuritics or obligations of any corporation, association, domestic and forcign,

The Parent Company is a public holding company with investments in businesses of messengerial
cither by sea, air or land of letters, parcels, cargoes, wares, and merchandise; acceptance and
remittance of money, bills payment and the like; and performance of other allied general services
from one place of destination to another within and outside of the Philippines.

The previous registered office and principal place of business of the Parent Company was at
MNo. 35 San Antonio Street, San Francisco Del Monte, Quezon City. On October 12, 2015, the
SEC approved the change in principal office of the Parent Company to LBC Hangar, General
Aviation Centre, Domestic Airport Road, Pasay City, Metro Manila, Philippines,

On April 22, 2015, the Parent Company received deposits for future stocks subscription from
LBCDC amounting to B39, 100,000,

On April 23, 2015, the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company approved the issuance of
59,101,000 common shares, at B1.00 per share, out of the unissued portion of the Parent
Company’s authorized capiral stock to LBCDC.

On May 18, 2015, the Parent Company and LBCDC entered into a Deed of Subscription, whereby
LBCDC, subject to the completion of the mandatory tender offer, subscribed to 59,101,000
common shares out of the unissued authorized capital stock of the Parent Company or
approximately 59.10% of the total authorized capital stock of the Parent Company by applying the
deposits for future stocks subscription received on April 22, 2015 as the consideration for the
subscribed shares at one peso (B1.00) per share. Accordingly, on the same date, the Parent
Company’s previous officers and directors resigned from their respective positions and majority
were replaced by the representatives from LBCDC.

On May 18, 20135, a former stockholder entered into a Deed of Assumption of Advances with
LBCDC; wherein, LBCDC agreed to assume the cash advances from the Parent Company by a
former stockholder which transpired on April 28, 2015 amounting to 58,805,165,
Accordingly, the Parent Company agreed to such assumption,

On May 22, 2015, LBCDC filed with the SEC its mandatory tender offer report for all the

outstanding shares of the Company for a tender offer price of one peso (B1.00) per share. The
mandatory tender offer period commenced on June 8, 2015 and ended on July 7, 2015, during
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which period, none of the Tender Offer Shares were tendered by the shareholders of the Parent
Company.

On July 14, 2015, LBCDC filed with the SEC its final tender offer report. With the completion of
the Tender Offer, LBCDC now owns 59,101,000 common shares representing approximately
59.10% of the issued and outstanding and authorized capital stock of the Parent Company.

On July 22, 2015, the Parent Company issued the stock certificates to LBCDC covering
the 39,101,000 common shares subject of the said subscription.

On July 29, 2015 and September 4, 2015, the BOD and stockholders, respectively, approved
the following resolutions on the amendment to Charter, By-Laws and other documents:

The change in the name of Parent Company to “LBC Express Holdings, Inc.”™;
The amendment of the secondary purpose of Parent Company which is primarily to align the
purpose to that of a holding company;

*  The ransfer of Parent Company’s principal office address to LBC Hangar, General Aviation
Centre, Domestic Airport Road, Pasay City, Metro Manila, Philippines;
The increase in the number of directors of Parent Company from seven to ning;
The increase in the authorized capital stock of Parent Company from £100,000,000 divided
into 100,000,000 shares with par value of B1.00 per share up to 3,000 000,000 divided into
3,000,000,000 shares with par value of £1.00 per share;

*  The change in the fiscal year of Parent Company from calendar vear to first day of December
of each year to the last day of November of the succeeding year; and

o The definition of dividends,

On July 29, 2015, the BOD approved the change of the trading symbol of the Parent Company s
shares in the PSE from “FED” 1o “LBC",

On September 18, 2015, the BOD determined and fixed the amount of the increase in authorized
capital stock of Parent Company from B 100,000,000 divided into 100,000,000 shares with par
value of 81,00 per share 1o 82 000,000,000 divided 1nto 2,000,000,000 with par value of £1.00
per share, and authorized the filing of the increase in authorized capital stock with the SEC.

Morecover, the BOD of Parent Company, in meetings held on July 29, 2015, September 18,
2015 and October 2, 2015, as relevant, and the stockholders of LBCH in the annual general
meeting held on September 4, 20135, also approved among others the following transactions:

*  The acquisition by the Parent Company of 1,041,180,493 issued and outstanding shares of
LBC Express, Inc. (LBCE) at a book value as reflected in the conselidated audited financial
statements of LBCE as of November 30, 2014, which book value shall not be less than
£1,000_ 000,000 or such other consideration and under such terms and conditions as
management may deem beneficial to the interest of the Parent Company;

= The issuance of 475,000,000 new Parent Company shares to LBCDC at the subscription price
of #1.00 per share out of the increase in authorized capital stock from 8 100,000,000 to
B2 000,000,000,

*  The issuance of 671,873,632 new Parent Company shares to LBCDC out of the increasc in
authorized capital stock, immediately following the approval by the SEC of the increase in
authorized capital stock at the subscription price of B1.00 per share, under such terms and
conditions as management may deem beneficial;

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.
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®  The issuance of (1) 59,663,947 shares to Vittorio Lim, (1) 59,663,946 shares to Mariano D.
Martinez, Jr. and (iii) 59,663,946 shares to Lowell L. Yu, or an aggregate of 178,991 839
common shares, from the unissued authorized capital stock of the Parent Company,
immediately following the approval by the SEC of the increase in authorized capital stock at
the subscription price of B1.00 per share, under such terms and conditions as management
may deem beneficial.

The foregoing issuances of stocks to LBCDC and / or other investors and/or third parties
(with reference to LBCDC or LBCE) was for the purposc of:

Primarily funding the acquisition by Parent Company of LBCE;
Funding the acquisition of other potential investments, whether or not related to the business of
LBCE; and

*  Ensuring compliance by the Parent Company with the minimum public ownership requirements
of the PSE.

On September 158, 2015, LBCDC subscribed to 23% of 1,900,000,000 increase in authorized
capital stock or equivalent to 475,000,000 common shares at the subscription price of 1.00 per
share, B177,555,495 of which, is immediately paid in cash, conditioned upon and effective
immediately following the approval by the SEC of the increase in authorized capital stock.

On the same date, LBCDC subscribed o additional 671,873,632 common shares out of the
unissued capital stock of the Parent Company at the subscription price of B1.00 per share, in
exchange for cash, conditioned upon and effective immediately following the approval by the
SEC of the increase in authorized capital stock.

On September 22, 2015, the Parent Company submitted an application for the increase in
authorized capital stock from one hundred million pesos (B100,000,000) divided into one
hundred million (100,000,000 shares with par value of one peso (B1_00) per share to two billion
pesos (B2,000,000,000) divided into two billion number of shares with par value of one peso
(#1.00) per share. On the same dare, the amendments to the Articles of Incorporation and By-
Laws, except for the change in fiscal year, were likewise submitted to the SEC.

In a Deed of Transfer dated September 24, 2015, the Parent Company purchased from LBCDC
the shares of stock of LBCE art a total cash consideration of B1,384 670,966, It was also
previously agreed that the Parent Company’s advanees pavable by LBCDC amounting to
£58,805,495 will be offset against the remaining unpaid balance,

On October 2, 2015, certain individuals subscribed to a total of 178,991,839 common shares out of
the unissued capital stock of LBCH at the subscription price of #1.00 per share, in exchange for
cash, conditioned upon and effective immediately following the approval by the SEC of the
increase in authorized capital stock.

On October 12, 2015, SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the Parent
Company. On the same date, SEC issued a certificate of filing of the Parent Company’s amended
Articles of Incorporation and amended By-Laws.

On October 16, 2015, the Parent Company issued the stock certificates to LBCDC covering the

1,146,873,632 common shares while on October 21, 2015 the Parent Company issued the stock
certificates to certain individuals covering 178 991,839 common shares.
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
have been approved and authorized for issue by the Group's BOD on March 8, 2017,

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements arc set out below. These policies have been constantly applied to all years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared using the historical cost
basis cxcept for available-for-sale (AFS) investments that have been measured at fair value, The
consolidated financial statements arc presented in Philippine Peso (B), which is also the Group's
functional currency. All amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso unit unless otherwise
indicated.

Difference in accounting periods

The Group consolidated the non-coterminous financial statements of its subsidiaries using their
Movember 30 fiscal year end financial statements since it is impracticable for the said subsidiaries
to prepare financial statements as of the same date as the reporting date of the Parent Company,

Management exercised judgment in determining whether adjustments should be made in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group pertaining to the effects of significant transactions
or events of its subsidiaries that occur between December 1, 2016 and the vear-end date of the
Parent Company’s financial statements which is December 31, 2016, The consolidated financial
statements were adjusted to effect LBCE s additional availment and settlement of bank loans in
December 2016 amounting to P136.72 million and P246.24 million, respectively: the adjustment
to reflect the increase in fair value of quoted AFS mmvestment by B50,72 million for the period
December | to December 31, 2016, and the settlement of advances to an affiliate on

December 21, 2016 amounting to B195.00 million. Aside from these, there were no other
significant transactions that transpired between December 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016, and
between December 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015,

Reverse acguisition

On September 24, 2015, the Parent Company completed the acquisition of LBCE through a cash
transaction (see Note 1), For accounting purposes, the transaction was accounted for similar to a
reverse acquisition following Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS) 3, Business
Combinaiion. LBCE was deemed to be the accounting acquirer under the principles of PFRS 3.
In a reverse acquisition, the legal acquirer is identified as the acquiree for accounting purposes
because based on the substance of the transaction, the legal acquiree is adjudged to be the entity
that gained control over the legal acquirer. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of
the Group have been prepared as a continuation of the consolidated financial statements of LBCE.,
The comparative December 31, 2015 information presented in the consolidated statements of
comprchensive income are those of LBCE from December 1, 2014 to November 30, 2015 and the
Parent Company from July 22, 2015 to November 30, 2015. Because the consolidated financial
statements represent a continuation of the consolidated financial statements of LBCE, except for
their capital structure, the consolidation will refleet the following:
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Before the asset purchase transaction (as at and for the year ended December 31, 2014)

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

the assets and liabilities of LBCE recognized and measured at their carrying amounts, not at
their acquisition-date fair values;

the retained carnings and other equity balances are that of LBCE;

the total equity is that of LBCE but the legal capital (common shares and additional paid-in
capital) would be that of the Parent Company;

the resulting equity reserve represents (1) the difference between the legal capital of LBCE
and the legal capital of the Parent Company; and (2) and the subsequent movement in legal
capital of LBCE; and

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects that of LBCE for the full period
and that of LBCH from the date of incorporation,

After the asset purchase transaction (as at and for the vear ended December 31, 2015)

a)

b)
c)

d)

the transferred assets and hiabilities of LBCE recognized and measured at the pre-combination
camrying amounts, not at acquisition-date fair values;

legal capital of the Parent Company;

the retained earnings of LBCE as of December 1, 2014 and accumulated comprehensive
income of the Parent Company from July 22, 2015 to December 31, 2015 and LBCE from
December 1, 2014 to November 30, 2015;

the compararive consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflected that of LBECE
from December 1, 2014 1o November 30, 20135, and the statement of comprehensive income
of the Parent Company from July 22, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

Impact of the share purchase agreement which was executed on September 24, 2015 to the
consolidared financial siatements

The effect of the execution of the deed of transfer was reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as movement in equity, as follows:

Investment recognized by the Parent Company #1384 670 966
Net assets of the Parent Company 875,659

P1.383,795,307

The effeet of pooling of interest of 81,383, 80 million is applicd against net available APIC of
85542 million, and the remaining amount of 839917 million is applied aganst retained carnings.

The rollforward analysis of Equity Reserve are as follows:

As of January 1, 2014 B57 794 310
Movement in legal capital of LBCE arnising from dividends declared

closed to equity reserve 871,406,004
As of December 31, 2014 920 200,314
Effect of pooling-of-interest (1,383,795 307)
Total (454,594,993)
Closed to APIC 55420327
Closed to retained earnings 399,174,666
As of December 31, 2015 P
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The accounting similar to a reverse acquisition applies only to the consolidated financial
statements. The Parent Company financial statements will continue to represent LBC Express
Holdings, Inc. as a stand-alone entity.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions, including income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. The consolidated
financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and
only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activitics of the investee)

* Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invelvement with the investee, and

o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

¢  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the invesice

e Rights arising from other contractual mrangements

¢ The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ccases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
Non-controlling interests {MNCI) represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries
not owned by the Group and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the Parent Company’s equity. Any
equity instruments issued by a subsidiary that are not owned by LBCH are non-controlling
interests including preferred shares and options under share-based transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive ncome (OCT) are attributed to the
equity holders of LBCH and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and habilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

o Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilitics of the subsidiary
* Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
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* Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

 Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

¢ Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained

e Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

* Reclassifics LBCH's share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of LBCH and the following
subsidiarics:

Country of Ownership Interest
incorporation Proncipal activitics 2016 2015
LBC Express, Inc, Plalippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 1005
LBC Express - MM, Ine. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 10025
LBC Express - CL, Ing. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100% 100%%
LBC Express - ML, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remitiance 100%% LT
LBC Express - VIS, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% L
LBC Express - 5L, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100% 100%%
LBC Express - 5CS, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%6 100%%
LBC Express - ESL Inc. Plalippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 1005
LBC Express - CMM, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 100%%
LBC Express - EMM, Ine. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100% 100%%
LBC Express - MIN, Inc. Phalippines Logistics and money remitiance 100 %% LT
LBC Express - SMM, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% L
LBC Express - SEL, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 1000
LBC Express - WVIS, Inc. Philippines Logstics and money remittance 100%s 100%%
LBC Express - SEM, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%6 100%%
LBC Express - 5CC, Ine., Phalippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 1005
LBC Express - SMCC, Tnc, Fhilippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 100%%0
LBC Express - NEMM, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%a 100%%
LBC Express - MWMM, Inc. Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100% LT
LBC Sysiems, Inc, Philippines Logistics and money remittance 100%% 1000
LBC Express WLL Kuwait Logistics 49% 49%,
LBC Express Bahrain, LLC Rahrain Logistics 49%, 49%
LBC Express LLC '™ Qatar Logistics 49% 49%

Mol
1} This entity is a subsidiary of LBC Express Bahrain, LLC which has 4% ownership interest,

There were no changes in the Parent Company’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries from
January 1, 2014 1o December 31, 2016,

Business Combination and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. This involves recognizing
identifiable assets (including previously unrecogmzed intangible assets) and habihities (including
contingent liabilities and excluding future restructuring) of the acquired business at fair value.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggresate of the consideration transferred, measured
at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. For
cach business combination, the acquirer measures the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree cither
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
costs incurred are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
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When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and habilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquirce. 1f the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held cquity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration, which
is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized in accordance with PAS 39 cither in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s imitially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilitics. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to cach of the
Group’s cash generating umits or groups of cash generating umits, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or group of units,

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated:

* represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes; and

* s not larger than a segment based on either the Group's primary or the Group's secondary
reporting format determined in accordance with PFRS 8, Operating Segment,

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit {group of cash generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill or profit or loss is recognized as a result.

Adjustments to non-controlling interests arising from transactions that do not involve the loss of
control are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary.

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS),

Reclassification

The Group reclassified certain accounts in the 2015 Consclidated Statement of Financial Position
compared to the 2015 previously issued consolidated financial statements to better classify the
accounts to its proper nature since portion of the receivables and payables previously presented as
due from/to related parties were arising from normal trade activities of the Company.

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Annual Report 2016

-9

Below are the details of the reclassifications. The reclassifications did not impact the 2015
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

December 31, 2015

Previous Balance  Reclassification Revised Balance

Statement of Financial Position

Trade and other receivables £1,025,059 428 B441,700,094 #1.466,759 522
Due from related parties 1.763.046,757 (441.700.094) 1,321,346,663
Accounts and other payables 1,830,208, 144 1,828,265 1,832,036,400
Due to related partics 19,966,251 (1,828.265) 18,137,936

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
that the Group has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements starting January 1,
2016, Adoption of these pronouncements did not have any significant impact in the Group's
financial position or performance unless otherwise indicated.

Amendmenis to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Siatements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of
Interesis in Other Fnrities, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
Tnvesiment Entities: Applving the Consolidation Exception

These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value, They also clarify that only a subsidiary of an
investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services to
the investment entiry parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an investor (that is
not an investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint venture) to retain the
fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture o its
interests in subsidiaries when applying the equity method, These amendments are not
applicable to the Group.

Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangemenis, Accownting for Acquisitions of Interesis in
Joint Operations

The amendments to PFRS 11 require a joint operator that is accounting for the acquisition of
an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constituies a
business (as defined by PFRS 3), to apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business
combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a
Joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to
PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control,
including the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation
and the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation. These amendments
do not have any impact to the Group as there has been no interest acquired in a joint operation
during the period.

PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accowns

PFRS 14 15 an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFES 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the consolidated statement of
financial position and present movements in these account balances as separate line items in
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the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income. The standard requires
disclosures on the nature of, and nisks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the
effects of that rate-regulation on its consolidated financial statements. Since the Group is an
existing PFRS preparer, this standard would not apply.

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statemenis, Disclosure Initiative
The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRSs. They clarify the following:

+  That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their consolidated financial
statements by either obscuring material information with immaterial information; or
aggregating material items that have different natures or functions

*  That specific line items in the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive
income and the consolidated statement of financial position may be disaggregated

+  That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to consolidated
financial statements

+  That the share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and
classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

The Group has assessed that these amendments do not have significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements upon adoption as it is already complying with the amended
standard in its presentation.

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 38, ©mangible Assets,
Clarification of Acceptable Methods af Depreciation and Amortization

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
cconomic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the cconomic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to deprciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets, These amendments
are applied prospectively and do not have any impact to the Group, given that the Group has
not used a revenue-based method to depreciate or amortize its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets.

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture: Bearer Planis

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply.
Afier initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost
{before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Discloswre of Government Assistance,
will apply. These amendments are applied retrospectively and do not have any impact to the
Group as the Group does not have any bearer plants.
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Amendments to PAS 27, Separaie Financial Statements, Eguity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. These amendments do not have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2012 - 20104 Cyele

Annual Report 2016

Amendment to PFRS 5, Non-current Asseis Held for Sale and Disconiinwed Operations,
Changes in Merhods of Disposal

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifics that changing from a disposal through
sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

Amendment to PFRS 7, Financial nstruments: Disclosures, Servicing Contracts

PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The
amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute
continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative
disclosures are not required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period
in which the entity first applies the amendments.

Amendment to PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 1o Condensed Interim
Financial Statements

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offserting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim finaneial
report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent
annual report.

Amendment to PAS 19, Emplovee Benefits, Discount Rate: Regional Marker fssue

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high
quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

Amendment to PAS 34, Inferim Financial Reporiing, Disclosure of Information "Elsewhere in
the Interim Financial Report’

The amendment 1s applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures
must cither be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report (e.z., in the management commentary or risk report).
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Standards issued but not yet effective

Pronouncements 1ssued but not vet effective are histed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the
Group does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant
impact on its consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following
pronouncements when they become effective.

Effeciive beginning on or affer Janwary 1, 2007

Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarification of the Scope of the Standard (Part of Annnal
Improvements to PFR5s 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating
to summarized financial information, apply to an entity's interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is
classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale. These
amendments are not expected 1o have any impact to the Group,

Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative

The amendments 1o PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in habilitics arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required
1o provide comparative informarion for preceding periods. Early application of the
amendments is permitted.  Application of amendments will result in additional disclosures in
the 2017 consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to PAS 12, fncome Taves, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide suidance on how an entity
should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit
may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Entitics are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application
of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may
be recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other
components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Early application
of the amendments is permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to
the Group.

Effeciive beginning on or affer Janwary 1, 2018

-

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classificarion and Measurement of Share-
hased Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based pavment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and
the accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.
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On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application 1s permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria
arc met. Early application of the amendments is permitted. These amendments are not
expected to have any impact to the Group.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PIRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS Y9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard.
They allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to deal
with the transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance
contracts the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the
volatility that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard
is issued. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activitics are
predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying
PFRS 9 until the carlier of application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or
January 1, 2021.

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it has not
previously applied PFRS 9. These amendmenis are not applicable to the Group.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Conrracts with Customers

PFRS 15 cstablishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer, The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to
measuring and recognizing revemie.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, The Group is currently
assessing the impact of this standard.

PFRS 9, Financial nsirumenis

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and
hedge accounting. PFRS 915 effective for annual periods beginning on or atter January 1,
2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but providing
comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are
generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions. The Group did not carly adopt
PFRS 9.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities. The Group
is currenily assessing the impact of adopting this standard.
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Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture ai Fair Value (Part of
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other
qualifying entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to
measure its investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss.
They also clarify that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity
method, elect to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate
or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiarics.
This election is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the
later of the date on which (a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially
recognized; (b) the associate or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and (¢) the
investment entity associate or jomnt venture first becomes a parent. These amendments should
be applied retrospectively, with earlier application permitted. These amendments are not
expected to have any impact to the Group.

Amendments to PAS 40, fivestment Property, Transfers of Investment Praperty

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Retrospective application is only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight,
These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Group.

Philippine Interpretation IFRI1C-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which an entity mnitially recognizes the nonmonctary asset or non-
monctary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation may be applied on a fully retrospective
basis. Entities may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in
its scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which
the entity first applics the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented
as comparative information in the consolidated financial statements of the reporting period in
which the entity first applics the interpretation. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
this standard.

Effective beginning on or after Janwary 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leases

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as cither operating or
finance leases in accordance with PAS 17, Leases. Rather, lessces will apply the single-assel
model. Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most
leases on their balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.



Annual Report 2016

-15-

interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less
or for which the underlying asset i1s of low value are exempted from these requirements.

The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17, Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
more information in their consolidated financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure
to residual value.

Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15, When
adopting PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modificd
retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition relicfs, The Group is currently
assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
cffective date once adopted locally. This standard is expected to significantly impact its
leasing arrangements for outlets which are currently accounted for as operating lease, as the
Group is already required to recognize the related assets and liabilitics in its consolidated
statement of financial position.

Deferred effecrivity

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets berween an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or

joint venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinarions. Any gain or
loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business,
however, 1s recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interesis in the associate or
joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council postponed the original
effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting
Standards Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting
that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. These amendments are not expected to have any
impact to the Group.

sh “ash Equival

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at face value. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, cash in banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less from the dates of acquisition. Cash in banks carn interest at prevailing bank
deposit rates.

Fair Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or ransfer the
liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or hiability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
cconomic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset on the highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and mimimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

o Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hicrarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitics

Daie of recognition

The Group recognizes a financial assct or a financial liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
cstablished by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date.

Initial recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are inirially recognized at fair value. Except for
financial assets and financial liabilitics at FVPL, the initial measurement of financial asscts
includes transaction costs. The Group classifies its financial asscts within the scope of PAS 39 in
the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets, AFS
financial assets and loans and receivables. Financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at FVPL and other finaneial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired or financial liabilities incurred and whether they are
quoted in an active market. The Group determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting
date.
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As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are of the
nature of loans and receivables, AFS financial assets and other financial habilities, respectively.

Deiermination of fair value

The fair value of financial asscts and financial liabilitics traded in active markets is based on
quoted market price at the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly oceurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments included in

Level 1 comprise primarily of listed equity investments as AFS.

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates.  1f all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.

‘Day 1 difference

Where the trransaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a *Day 17 difference) in the consolidated statement of
comprechensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases
where use is made of data which is not obscrvable, the difference between the transaction price
and model valuc is only recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when
the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the
Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 17 difference amount.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that are not quoted in an active market, These are not entered into with the
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial asscts or
financial assets at FVPL.

After initial measurement, loans and reeeivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are integral parts of
the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in the interest income in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment of such loans and
receivables are recognized as provision for impairment losses in the Group’s consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity 15 within twelve months from the
reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Group's loans and receivables include cash and cash

equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from related parties, and short-term investments
under prepayments and other current assets.
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Available-for-sale financial assets
AFS5 financial assets pertain to equity investments. Equity instruments classified as AFS are those
that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as FVPL.

After initial measurement, AFS financial asscts are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in OCl and credited to unrealized gain (loss) on AFS
financial assets account until the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognized in other income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative loss is reclassified from unrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial assets account to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in other expenses. Dividend carned whilst holding AFS
financial assets is reported as dividend income,

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near
term is stll appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets, the Group may clect to reclassify these financial assers if the
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value carryving amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that
has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity
amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. 1f the asset is
subscquently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Chther financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities pertain to financial liabilities not classified or designated as financial
liabilities at FVPL where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group having
an obligation cither to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or o settle the
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash.

Afier initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the 15sue and fees that are integral parts of the effective interest rate,

As of December 31, 2016 and 20135, the Group’s other financial liabilities include accounts and
other payables {excluding statutory liabilities), due to related parties, notes payable, transmissions
liability, finance lease liabilitics and other noncurrent liabilities.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group asscsses at cach reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of similar financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of similar financial
asscts is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred afier the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
“loss event™) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of similar financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where obscrvable
data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaulis.
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Loans and receivables

For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of similar financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for group of such assets by being indicative of the debtors™ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 1s, or continues to
be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (excluding future eredit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of estimated cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use
of an allowance account and the amount of loss is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be recognized based on the original effective
interest rate of the asset. Loans, together with the associated allowance accounts, are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized. If, na
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset docs not exceed its
amortized cost at the reversal date.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of such credit risk characteristics as customer type, payment history, past-due status and term.

Future cash flows in a group of similar financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group, Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on
which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that do not exist currently. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating futurc cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s objective evidence that investment 1s
impaired. In the case of equity investmenis classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets arc impaired.
‘Significant” is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged’ against
the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Generally, the Group treats
‘significant’ as 20% or more and ‘prolonged” as greater than twelve months. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized
in profit or loss is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments are not reversed through profit or loss, but its increases in the fair value after
impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive income,
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Derecosnition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assel
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b} the Group has wansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-throngh’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has ransferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assct or has entered mto a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues 1o recognize the rransferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes
an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.,

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
maodified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assct and
scttle the liability simultancously.

Prepayments and Other Assets

Prepayments substantially consisting of rent and advertising are recognized in the cvent that
payment has substantially been made in advance for the purchase of goods or services for which
delivery or performance has not vet occurred. Prepayments are measured at undiscounted
amounts and derecognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as they expire with
the passage of time, or through use and consumption,

Materials and supplies consist of the supplies, inks, packing materials and receipt used in the
Group’s operations. Materials and supplies are initially measured at the cost of purchase, which
comprise the purchase price less trade discounts, rebates and other similar deductions. Materials
and supplies are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is
determined using average cost formula. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Materials and supplics are derecognized when consumed,
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Other asscets in the form of input value-added tax and creditable withholding tax are recognized as
assets to the extent it 15 probable that the benefit will flow to the Group. These are derecognized
when there is a legally enforceable right to apply the recognized amounts against the related tax
liability within the period prescribed by the relevant tax laws.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impairment in value. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price,
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the property and equipment to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred afier the property and
equipment have been put into operation are capitalized as part of property and equipment only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the items can be measured reliably, All other repairs and maintenance are charged
against current operations as incurred.

Depreciation and amortization is calculated on a straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives of the property and equipment:

Years

Computer hardware 305
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment Jtos
Transportation equipment Jw 10
& or lease term

Leaschold improvements {whichever is shorter)

Construction in progress is stated at cost. Construction in progress is not depreciated until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and available for use.

The assets” residual value, estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are
reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and method of depreciation and amortization are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment.
The asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount Is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related
accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated provision for impairment losses, if
any, are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property and equipment) is
credited to or charged against profit or loss in the year the property and equipment 1s
derccognized,

Intangible Asseis
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expendimre is reflected in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.
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Intangible asscts with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives 1s
recognized in the consolidared statement of comprehensive income in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of the intangible assets, The useful life of the Group's software is
three to five years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, cither individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determing whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable,  1f not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Development expenditures on an individual project arc recognized as an intangible asset when the
Group can demonstrate:

= the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for
use or sale;

+ its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset;

+  how the asset will generate future economic benefits;

*  the availability of resources to complete the asset; and

+ the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asscet, the asset is carried at
cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.  Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over
the period of expected future benefit. Amortization is recorded in operating expenses. During the
period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Asscts

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. [f any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets, Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 15 written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.
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An assessment is made at cach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognized. 1f that is the case the carrying amount of the assel
1s increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogmzed
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase, Afier such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.

Employee Benefits

The Group has a noncontributory defined retirement benefit plan. The net defined retirement
benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined retirement benefit
liabiliry at the end of reporting date reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), adjusted for
any cffect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the assct ceiling. The asset ceiling is the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following;

* Secrvice costs
= Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset
+  Remeasurements of net defined benefit hability or asset

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routing settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss. Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by an
independent qualified actuary,

Met interest on the net defined retirement benefit liability or asset is the change during the period
in the net defined retirement benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is
determined by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined retirement
benefit liability or asset. MNet interest on the net defined retirement benefit liability or asset is
recognized as expensc or income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in
the effeet of the asset eeiling (excluding net interest on defined retirement benefit liability) are
recognized immediately in OCT in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.  All remeasurements recognized in OCI
account, “Remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement benefit plan”, are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods,

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or quahfying imsurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly
to the Group, Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market
price 1s available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the
maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected
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period until the settlement of the related liabilities). I the fair value of the plan assets is higher
than the present value of the defined retirement benefit liability, the measurement of the resulting
defined retirement benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit retirement hability is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
cmployee’s employment as a result of either the Group’s decision to terminate an employee's
employment before the normal retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termination of employment,

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs, Initial recognition and subscquent changes to termination benefits are measured in
accordanee with the namre of the employee benefit, as either post-employment benefits, short-
term employee benefits, or other long-term employee benefits,

Employee feave enititlement

Employee entitlements to anoual leave are recognized as a liability when they are acerued to the
employees, The undiscounted liability for leave credits in excess of 45 days is expected to be
settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the anmual reporting date. Earned leave
credits of 45 days is recognized as a liability and settled when the employee leaves the Group
subject to certain conditions.

Equity
The Group considers the underlying substance and economic reality of its own equity instruments
and not merely its legal form in determining its proper classification.

Capital siock

The Group records common stocks at par value and the amount of the contribution in excess of par
value is accounted for as an additional paid-in capital. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are deducted from proceeds.

Retained earnings

Rerained earnings represent accumulated earnings of the Group less dividends declared, and any
adjustments arising from application of new accounting standards, policies or corrections of crrors
applied retrospectively. Dividends on common stocks are recognized as a liability and deducted
from equity when declared.

Eguity reserve

Equity reserve 1s the result of the application of similar to a pooling-of-interest which represents
the difference between the legal capital of the legal acquiree/accounting acquirer as against the
legal capital of the legal acquirer/accounting acquiree.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured regardless when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, returns,
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rchates and sales tax. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in
order to determine if it is acting as a principal or agent.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Service fees

The Group recognizes revenue from mbound and outbound courier, cargo and money transfer
facilitics when services are rendered and delivered, risk and rewards are wransferred to customers
and collection of amounts billed to customers are reasonably assured.

Service arising from money transfer is considered to have been rendered when the principal
amount of money has been transferred to a certain geographical area where the Group holds a
branch and the same is ready for withdrawal by the intended beneficiary.

Inieresi income
Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Interest income from bank deposits is presented net of applicable tax withheld by the banks.

Cther income
Other income is recognized when carned.

Cost and Expense Recognition

Cost and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when deerease in future ecconomic benefit
related to a decrease inan asset or an increase in a lability has arisen that can be reliably
measured.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

*  On the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the earning of specific
items of income;

¢ On the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are
expected to arise over several accounting periods and the association can only be broadly or
indirectly determined: or

¢ Immediately when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the
extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify or cease to qualify, for recognition in the
consolidated statement of financial position as an assct,

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.

A reassessment is made afier inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

{a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

{b) arencwal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

{c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specific asset;
or,

{d) there is a substantial change to the asset.
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Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (¢) or (d) above, and at
the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Crronp as lessee

A lease 1s classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified
as a finance lease,

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date, the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achicve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized in finance costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated uscful life of the asset and the lcase term. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an operating expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Income Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred tax, Tax is recognized in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax 15 also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current fax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respeet to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred iax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences,
with certain exceptions, at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefit of unused tax credits
from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RCIT)
and net operating losses carryover (MOLCO), o the extent that it is probable that future taxable
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carrvforward
benefits of unused tax credits from MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.
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Deferred tax assets are not recognized when they arise from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of transaction, affects
neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are not provided
on nontaxable temporary differences associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures,

The carryving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable thar sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at cach reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Movements in the deferred tax assets
and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates are credited to or charged against income for the

period.

Deferred tax relaring to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or
directly in cquity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset, if a legally enforecable right exists to
offset current tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Forcign Currency-Denominated Transactions and Translations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in Philippine Peso at prevailing exchange rates at the
time of the transactions. Exchange gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are
credited or charged to current operations. Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and
liabilities of the Group are translated to Philippine Peso using the Philippine Dealing and
Exchange Corporation closing rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising
from foreign currency translation are also credited or charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive Income.

The results and financial position of all the Group's branches outside the Philippines (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary cconomy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are iranslated into the presentation currency as follows:

(1) assets and liabilitics for cach statement of financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the reporting date;

(i1} income and expenses for cach statement of income are translated at average exchange rates
{unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(11} all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercises significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between
and/or among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between
and/or among the reporting enterprise and its key management personnel, directors, or its
sharcholders. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Earnings Per Share (“EPS™)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing income applicable to common shares by the weighted average
number of common shares oustanding during the year with retroactive adjustments for stock
dividends, Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner as basic EPS, however, net income
atiributable to common shares and the weighted average number of shares outstanding arc
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential common shares.

Segment Reporting

The Exceutive Committee is the Group's chief operating decision-maker. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Exceutive Committee,
The Execurive Committee, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating scgments, has been identified as the steering committee that makes strategic
decisions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the retmbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income net of
any reimbursement. Provisions are included in current liabilitics, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the reporting period, which are then classified as noncurrent
liabilities. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. 1f it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is recognized in profit or loss.

Contingencics

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent asscts are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post vear-end events up to the date when the consolidated financial statements are authorized for
1ssue that provide additional information about the Group’s position at each reporting date
{adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post year-end events that
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, when
material.
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
Judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenucs, expenscs,
asscts and liabilitics, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Management believes the following represent a summary of these significant judgments, estimates
and assumptions:

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements,

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds fess than 50% ownership

LBCE has assessed that it controls the entities in Bahrain, Kuwait and Qatar even at 49%

ownership due to the following reasons:

(a) it has the power to dircet the relevant activitics (c.g. operations, hiring of people, setting up of
rates) of the entities. [t has the full discretion on its day to day operations and decides on
major transactions these entitics enter into,

(b) it is exposed to variable returns of the entitics.

(c) given its participation in the relevant activities of the entities, it 15 able to affect the retums of
the entities.

Identifving a business combination
The Group determines whether a transaction or an event is a purchase of a business or purchase of
an asset by applying PFRS 3 which provides the definition of a business.

The Parent Company 1s a shell listed Company with only cash of 811,840, other current asscts of
#4539 and due from a related party of B58,805,165 as the primary assets as of May 18, 2015 and
therefore not comprising a business upon acquisition (sece Note 1).

Determining ﬁmcmmaf CHFTENnCy

LBCH and its subsidiaries have determined that their functional currency is the Philippine Peso,
except for LBC Express WLL, LBC Express Bahrain WLL and LBC Express LLC which are in
Kuwaiti Dinar, Bahraini Dinar and Qatari Rival, respectively. It is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entities operate.

Lease commiimenis - Group as lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease 1s based on the substance of
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
assel.

Management exercises judgment in determining whether substantially all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the leased assets are transferred to the Group. Lease contracts, which
transfer to the Group substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the lcased items, arc classificd as finance lease. Otherwise, they are considered as operating
leases.
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The Group has entered into various lease arrangements for its business operations

(see Note 18). In determining whether the lease is cancellable or not, the Group considered,
among others, the significance of the lease term as compared with the estimated useful life of the
related asset. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangement, that the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased property and so accounts for the contract as operating lease.

For leases involving transportation equipment, the Group has determined that it retains all
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the leased properties and so accounts for the
contracts as finance lease,

Determining provisions and contingencies

The Group is currently involved in various legal proceedings including taxation matters, The
estimate of the probable costs for the resolutions of these claims has been developed in
consultation with outside counsel handling the defense in these matters and is based upon an
analysis of potential results. The Group currently does not believe these proceedings will have a
material effeet on the Group’s financial position, [t is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the
strategies relating to these proceedings.

Mo provision for probable losses arising from legal contingencics was recognized in the
consolidated financial statements for the vears ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 25).

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are deseribed below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Estimating wseful lives of property and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over which
the assets are expected to be available for use. The Group reviews annually the estimated useful
lives of property and equipment based on expected assct utilization. It is possible that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and
cquipment would increase the recorded depreciation and deerease the carrying value of property
and cquipment,

The carrying amount of property and equipment amounted to B840 48 million and
P763.02 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 7).

Estimating pension cost

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits as well as the
present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions. These mclude the determination of the discount
rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and atirition. Due to the complexity of the valuation,
the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations are highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rate of
government bonds in the respective currencies with extrapolated maturitics corresponding to the
expected duration of the defined benefit obligation adjusted based on the manner of cash outflow
of settling the pension liabiliry.

The mortality rate 1s based on publicly available mortahty tables in the Philippines and i1s modified
accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary ncreases is based on
expected salary rate increase over the duration of the obligation. Artrition rate is based on
historical experiences. Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 19,

The carrying amount of pension liabilities, net of plan assets, amounted to P721.03 million and
Po41 81 million as of December 31, 2016 and 20135, respectively (see Note 19).

Recognizing deferred tax assers

The Group reviews the carrving amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available o
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning stratepgics.

Realization of future tax benefit related to deferred tax asscts is dependent on the Group's ability
to generate future taxable income during the periods in which they are expected to be recovered.
The Group has considered factors in reaching a conclusion as to the amount of deferred income
tax assets recognized as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, Management believes that the Group
will be able to generate future taxable income to allow for the realization of deferred tax assets.

Based on management's assessment, the Group recognized deferred tax assets amounting to
£274.38 million and #225,65 million as of December 31, 2016 and 20135, respectively (see
Mote 17).

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

When the fair values of financial asscts and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments (see Note 21).
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2016 2015
Cash on hand $174.890,603 B168,529471
Cash in banks 039,534,180 791,383,179
Cash equivalents 213,365,944 19,189,839

$1.327,790,727 BOT79.102 489

Cash in banks carn interest at the respective bank deposit rates.
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Cash equivalents include short-term placements made for varying periods of up to three months,

Cash in banks and cash equivalents earn interest ranging from 0.25% to 2.25%, 0.25% to 1.13%,
and 0.50% to 1.13% per annum in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Interest income carned
from cash and cash equivalents amounted to B2.37 mullion, £1.54 million, and £0.37 million in
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

2016 2015

Trade receivables - outside parties P1,023,354,253 BLO31,317.740
Trade receivables - related parties (Note 14) 518,466,319 441,700,094
1,541,820,572 1.473,017.834

Less allowance for impairment losses 55,694,985 39.891,364

1,486,125,587 1,433,126 470

Other receivables:
Advances to officers and emplovees 26,117,759 19,890 562
Others 14,475,954 13,742,490
P1,526,719.330 B 466,759522

Allowance for impairment losses were specifically identified as impaired. These pertains to trade
receivables from outside parties.

The movements in allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables follow:

2016 2015
January 1 £39.891.364 PE.429 845
Provisions (MNote 16) 15,803,621 31461519
December 31 P55,694,985 P39.891,364

Trade receivables arise from sale of services related to inbound and cutbound courier services,
handling and consolidation services with normal credit terms of 30 to 90 days.

Advances to officers and employees consist mainly of noninterest-bearing advances which are
subjeet to liquidation upon completion of the business transaction and personal advances subject
to salary deductions.

The Group has directly written-off other reccivables amounting to B3 22 million, #2664 million,
and £0.09 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, where probability of collection has been
determined to be remote. These were recognized under operating expenses in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16).

Portion of trade receivable - outside partics amounting to P40.79 million are assigned in relation to
a bank loan availed in 2016 (see Note 12).
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6. Prepayvments and Other Assets

Annual Report 2016

This account consists of’

2016 2015
Input valuc-added tax (VAT) P184,851.516 BO6, 908,490
Materials and supplics 104,972,605 115,581,178
Prepayments:

Rent 41,012,242 62,462 450
Advertising 11,995,164 12,768,802
Insurance 11,576,755 16,482,552
Taxes 4,911,428 2877668
Software maintenance cost 4,854,547 5,940,594
Others 15,957,769 6,900 984
Creditable withholding taxes (CWT) 46,767,004 75,696,351
Short-term cash investments 27,340,771 5.011,500
Restricted cash - 135,278,700
Other current assets 4,000,000 —
458,239,801 505,909 299
Less allowance for impairment losses - 798,769
P458,239.801 B505,110,530

Less noncurrent portion of’
VAT on capital goods 54,943,647 41,805,223
Prepaid rent 15,206,957 20,000,868
Total noncurrent portion £70,150,604 P 1,806,001
Total current portion P388,089,197 B443.304,439

Input VAT is applied against ourput VAT, Management believes that the remaining balance is

recoverable in future periods.

Materials and supplies carried at cost consist of office supplies, packing materials and official
receipts used in the Company’s operations. Materials and supplies recognized under cost of
services for the vears ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounted to B293 38 million and

B242.11 million respectively (see Note 15).

Prepaid advertising consists of advances for billboards and multimedia endorsements.

Other prepayments pertain to advance payments of salaries and wages, unamortized dues and

subscriptions and licenses.

CWTs are attnbutable to taxes withheld by the withholding agents which are creditable against

income tax payable.

Short-term cash investments are time deposits with maturity of more than three months from the

date of acquisition but not exceeding one year,

Restricted cash in bank represents cash deposit in a bank in the name of LBCE which was funded
by a speeific customer in relation to the money remittance service in behalf of the said specific
customer. LBCE availed of a loan from a bank specifically to service the said customer and the

cash deposit served as a guarantee to the bank. The cash balance has been fully diminished in
2016 as the loan was fully repaid within the vear.
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The cost of fully depreciated assets that are still in use amounted to 1,69 billion and £1.53 billion
as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Depreciation charges were recognized as follows:

2016 2015 2014
P196,497,941 B191,503.976 B201,892.910
68,067,945 51,006,138 61,550,629
P264.565,886 #242.510,114 P263,743,539

Cost of services (Note 15)
Operating expenses (Note 16)

The Group leases transportation, service and office equipment that are included in the property
and equipment and under various finance arrangements ranging for a period of 24 1o 60 months
(see MNote 18).

In 20135, the Company purchased a computer hardware on a long-term payment arrangement. The
liability is noninterest bearing and payable over 60 months, As of December 31, 2016, the
outstanding liability amounted to 43,55 million, B34,48 million of which is reported under
‘other noncurrent liabilities” in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Annual Report 2016

Intangible Assets

The rollforward analysis of this account follows:

2016
Construction in

Software Progress Total
Costs
Al beginning ol year 134,430,313 B243,687,774 BITR118,087
Reclassification 198,861,104 (198.861,104) -
Addimions 2157464 18,313,544 20,471,368
Disposal (55,0007 = (55,00
Al end ol the year 335,393 881 63,140,574 J9R,534,455
Accumulated Amortization
Al begimning ol year 101,736,602 - 101,736,602
Amortization (Note 16) 30,779,219 - 30,779,219
Disposal (29.027) = (29,027)
At end of the vear 132,486,794 - 132,486,794
Net Book Value B202,907,087 £63,140,574 B266,047,661

2015
Construction in

Software Progress Total
Costs
At beginming of year B113,797 585 P227 626,90 #341 424 581
Additions 8,106,307 51,763, 1% 59 869,503
Insposal (1,849 359) (21,326,438) (23,175,997)
Reclassification 14,375 980 (14.375,980) -
At end of the year 134,430,313 243,687,774 ITE 15087
Accumulated Amortization
At begimning of year B4, 862,275 B4 862275
Amortiztion (Note 16) 16,874,327 - 16,874,327
At end of the vear 101,736,602 10,736,602
Met Book Value #£32 693 711 $£243 687,774 2276381 485
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Construction in progress pertains to costs related to ongoing development of software, user license
and implementation costs.

In 2015, the Company reversed the intangible assets with a cost of P21.33 million and its related
payable (sec Note 14).

There were no capitalized borrowing costs in 2016 and 2015,

Available-for-Sale Investments

AFS investments represent the Company’s investment in unquoted unit investment trust fund and
investment in the quoted shares of stock of Araneta Properties, Inc.

Movement of the AFS investments follow:

2016 2015
Quoted:
Balance at beginning of year B212,596,951  B276,961,165
Additions 757,920 -
Sale of shares (332,450) -
Unrealized fair value gain (loss) 245,368,753 (64,364,214
458,391,174 212,596,951
Unquoted:
Balance at beginning of vear - -
Additions 400,000,000 -
Withdrawals (150,000,000) -
Unrealized fair value gain 937,154
250,937,154
709,328,328 212,596,951
Less current portion P250,937,154 B
Total noncurrent portion P458.391,174 212596951

The major categories of the Group's investment in unquoted unit investment trust fund comprise
primarily of Overnight Deposit Facility and Term Deposit Facility in the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas.

Mowvement in unrealized gain (loss) on AFS investments follow:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of vear (#51,169,355) £13,194 859
Reclassified to profit or loss arising from sale of
AFS imvestments 80,016 -
Unrealized gain (loss) during the year from the
following investments:
Quoted 245,368,753 (64,364.214)
Unquaoted 937,154
Balance at end of year (Note 13) £195,216,568 (B51,169 355)
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1. Accounts and Other Payables

This account consists oft

2016 2015
Trade payable - outside parties B553,696,573 P6R5 464 390
Trade payable - related partics (Note 14) 10,239,262 1,828,265
Taxes payable 175,914,534 300,344,268
Accruals:
Salaries and wages 187,053,321 240,835,169
Rent and utilitics 91,142,838 54,559 689
Contracted jobs 61,027,104 58,193,123
Claims and losses 55,388,469 61,113,276
Advertising 21,393,670 36,834,615
Taxes 8.509.450 150,376,792
Outside services 7,086,121 9,609,462
Professional fees 6,980,356 15,748,004
Others 63,177,810 60,609,054
Government agencies contributions payables 21,971,215 18,411,927
Others (Note 14) 31,322,861 18,108,345
P1,294.903,590 B1.832,036.409

Trade payable and accrued expenses arise from regular transactions with suppliers and service
providers. These are noninterest bearing and are normally settled on one to 60 - day term,

Taxes payable include withholding taxes on payment to suppliers and employees” compensation
which are settled on a monthly basis and deferred output VAT on uncollected receivables from
vatable sales.

Accrued salaries and wages pertain to unpaid salaries and provision for employee’s allowances
and benefits.

Other accruals include accrual for cost of delivery and remittance, maintenance software cost,
website development cost and training cost.

Government agencies contribution payable pertains to monthly required remittances to
government agencics such as 555, Pag-ibig and Philhealth.

Other payables include emplovees” salary loan deductions payable to third parties, guarantee fee
payable to a related party and payables ansing from expenses incurred in relation to transactions
with nontrade suppliers.

11. Transmissions Liability

Transmissions liability represents money transfer remittances by clients that are still outstanding
and not vet encashed by the beneficiaries as at reporting date. These are due and demandable.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, transmissions liability amounted to B467 .28 million and
P508. 14 million, respectively,
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12. Notes Payable

The Group has outstanding notes payable to various local banks,

December 31, 2016 and 2015 are described below:

The details of these notes as at

016
Date of
Bank Availment Chutstanding Balance Maturily Interest Hale Terms
Banco de Oro Yarons 1 OHR, DM, DY Alarch 2017 Fixed mate,  Clean: Interest pavable every
availments in 4.010%, month, principal to be paid
a an mulurity date
Banco de Oro Variows TTLEMLMEN  Variows maturities Fixed rate, With mortpage: Interesi
availments in im 2006 to 2021 LRI payable every month,
G primcipal payable quarterly
Unionbank of the Various 20U, E Variows maturities Fined rate,  Clean; Interest payable every
Philippines availments in im 2007 LRI maonth, principal to be paid
s on maturity date
Rieal Commercial Various 136, 715,50  Varous malurities Finved rate,  Clean; Interest payable every
Banking Corporation  availment in in 2007 LR L ) month, principal to be paid
(ROBCT) s an matarity date
China Trust Banking  December 20, TiHE ML MEY Jamuary 10, 2007 Fised rate With AR assignment;
Corporation MlE 5.50% Imierest payahle every
maonth, principal to be paid
on matarity date
Total P1,359,21 5,500
Current portion of notes pavable P66, TS, SN
Nomcurrenl porlion BE02 S0, HMH)
2013
Dhate of
Rank Availment Ostanding Balance Maiturity Imercst Rate Terms
Bamco de Ono Various PXOIT 458333 Varous Fixed rate. Clean; Inerest and principal
availments in maluritics in 400 pavable monthly until matanty
2015 2015 and 2016
Hamco de O Vanous 2500, D00, My Vanous Fixed mte, 4.00% Clean; Imerest payable every
avallments in medurilies in month, principal 1o be paid on
2015 2015 and 20016 maturity date
Unionbank of the Various 10 N, 00 Various Fixed rate, Clean; Imerest pavable every
Philippines availments in maturitics in G.00%  month, principal 1o be paid on
2015 2006 maiuriny date
Riral Commercial Vamous OR DO4, D4y Varous Fixed rate, Clean; Ieres payable cvery
Banking Cosporation  availment in maturities in G.00%  month, principal 1o be paid on
(RCRC) 2015 2016 maturity date
Chinatrust Bank September 1 540, 00040, D00 Jamuary 2016 Fixed rate, Clean; Imerest pavable every
Corporation mis 5.00%  month, principal 1o be paid on
maturity date
Landbank of the Ohztober M5 35150500 Vanous matnties Fixed mte, 2.50% Clean; Inmerest and principal
Philippines in 2016 payable monthly until manarity
1040617833

The Notes Facility Agreement entered by the Group with Banco De Oro (BDOY) in May 2016 is
with a credit line facility amounting to 800,00 million. The loan is sccured with real estate

mortgage on land owned by the Group's affiliate (see Note 14).

Upon loan availment in 2016, the Group, under a Deed of Assignment of Receivables, agreed to
sell, assign and transfer, on a with recourse basis, unto RCBC, certain receivables under “Trade
receivables - outside parties. Total receivables assigned amounted to B201.89 million,

2161.10 million of which was colleeted in 2016,
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Interest expense amounted to 84010 million, B18 86 million, and #1739 million in 2016, 2015
and 2014, respectively.

The loans were used primarily for working capital requirements and are not subject to any loan
covenants.

13, Equity

Capital Stock
As of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the details of the Parent Company’s capital stock follow:

2016
Number of
Shares of Stocks Amount
Capital stock - 81 par value
Authorized 2,000,000,000 £2,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding 1,425,865.471 1,425,8065,471
2015
MNumber of Shares
of Stocks Amount
Capital stock - 81 par value
Authorized shares:
Beginning of year 100,000,000 P1O0,000,000
Increase in authorized capital stock 1,900, 000,000 1,900,000, (00
Balance at end of vear 2,000,000,000 82,000,000, 000
lssued and outstanding shares
Balance at beginning of year 40,899,000 P40,899,000
Issuances of sharcs 1,384,966,471 1,384.966.471
Balance at end of vear 1,425 865471 Bl 425865471
2014
Mumber of Shares
of Stocks Amount
Capital stock - B1 par value
Authorized 100,000,000 £100,000,000
Issued and outstanding 40,899 000 40,899 000

Increase in authorized capital stock

On October 12, 20135, SEC approved the increase of the Parent Company’s common stock from
210000 million, divided into 100.00 million shares with par value of 81.00 per share to

£2.00 billion, divided into 2.00 billion shares with par value of 1.00 per share.

Issuances of new shares

*  OnMay 18, 2015, LBCDC subscribed to 59,101,000 common shares out of the unissued
authorized capital stock of the LBCH or approximately 59, 10% of the total authorized capital
stock of LBCH, before the approval of the increase in authorized capital stock by applying the
deposits for future stocks subscription made by LBCDC amounting to 859 101,000 on
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April 22, 2015, as the consideration for the subscribed shares at one peso (B1.00) per share,
As discussed in Note 1, subsequently, on July 22, 2015, the Parent Company issued the stock
certificates to LBCDC covering the 59,101,000 common shares.

o On September 18, 2015, LBCDC subscribed to 25% of 1,900,000,000 increase in authorized
capital stock or equivalent to 475,000,000 common shares at the subscription price of
£1.00 per share, in exchange for cash.

On the same date, LBCDC subseribed to additional 671,873,632 common shares out of the
unissued capital stock of the Parent Company at the subscription price of 81.00 per share, in
exchange for cash.

e On October 2, 2015, certain individuals subscribed to a total of 178,991,839 common shares
out of the unissued capital stock of the Parent Company at the subscription price of 8100 per
share, in exchange for cash, conditioned upon and effective immediately following the
approval by the SEC of the increase in authorized capital stock.

On October 16, 2015, the Parent Company issued the stock certificates to LBCDC covering the
1,146,873 632 common shares while on October 21, 2015 the Parent Company issued the stock
certificates to certain individuals covering 178,991 839 common shares.

Retained Farnings

On October 11, 2016, the BOD of LBCH approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
P313.69 million or P0.22 for every issued and outstanding common share, P48.38 million of
which has been paid in cash to minority sharcholders. The portion of dividends attributable to
LBCDC was settled on a net basis as disclosed in detail in Note 14,

The Parent Company has incurred a share 1ssuance cost amounting to B15.66 million which
reduced the additional paid-in-capital as of December 31, 2015,

Accumulated Comprehensive Income
Details of accumulated comprehensive income as at December 31 follow:

2016 2005 2014
Remeasurement gain on retirement
benefit plan - net of tax
(Note 19) P107.386,833 BL19376,370 Pl162,274 896
Currency translation gain
(loss) - net 3,074,001 204,135 (10,721,695)
Unrcalized fair value gain (loss)
on AFS investments 195,216,568 (51,169 355) 13,194 859
305,677,402 68,411,150 164,745 060
Accumulated comprehensive
income (loss) attributable to:
Controlling interest 309,059,077 269 568 040 Bl65,122 965
MNon-controlling interest (P3,381,675) (21,156,890) (R374 905)
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14. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Group transacts with related parties consisting of its ultimate
parent, LBCDC and affiliates. Affiliates include those entitics in which the owners of the Group
have ownership interests. These transactions include royalty, delivery, service and management
fees and loans and cash advances. Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding accounts with
related parties shall be settled in cash. The transactions are made at terms and prices agreed upon
by the partics,

Details of related party transactions and balances as at and for the years ended December 31 are as

follow:
2016
Amount’Volume Recelvahle Terms Conditions
Due from related parties | Trade receivables)
Affittares
a.) Delivery fiee, management
fec, financial Instant Peso
Padala (TP1") ful illment fee Noninteresi-bearing; due and Unsecured,
(Wotes 5 and 22 R0, 293,543 PRIR 466,319 I Rl o impair ment
Due from related parties (Non-trade receivables)
Lltintate pavent conpany
MNoninteresi-bearing; duoe and 1nsecured,
b.) Advances FIE6,403,424 PO13,895.352 demandable i impairment
Affiftates
Noninteresi-bearing; due and 1 nsecured,
b.) Advances 01,550,192 184,806,983 demandable iy impairment
Officer
Noninterest-hearing: due and Tnsecured,
b.) Advances 12,599 0,206,404 I lallsl iy impairment
P1,107,999,329
2015
Amount™Volime Receivable Terms Conditions
D from related parties { Trade receivables
Affiliares
o) Delivery fee, management
fiee, Anancial Instant Peso
Fadala (IP1") fulfillment fee Noninterest-bearing; due and Unsecured,
{Notes 5 and 22) P86, 357,006 P41, 700,094 demandable N impairment
om related parties (Mo o regejvahles
Llitintate pavent conpany
Noninterest-bearing; due and Unsecured,
b.) Advances P246, 183,034 POG2.953.221 demandable no impairment
Affiliares
Noninterest-bearing; due and Unsecured,
b.) Advances 91.501.089 342,109,047 demandable 0o Impairment
Cffecer
Noninterest-bearing; due and Unsecured,
b.) Advances 5,000,000 9,284,395 demandable 0o Impairment

P1,321 346,663
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1016
Amount™Volume Pavable Terms Conditions
Due to related partics (Trade pavables)
Ultimate Parent Company
Noninterest-bearing: due and
o) Rovally fee (Notes 10 and 16)  PL195 497,630 P10,239.262 demandable Unsecurcd
d.) Guarntes fee Noninterest-bearing: due and
(MNotes 100and 12} 4,761,905 44671229 demandable Unsecured
F14,9110,491
Due to relatesd parties (Non-trade payables)
Uilhiniate Parent Company
Nominterest-bearing; due and
by Advamces B- P15,694.463 demandable Unsecured
e.) Dividends declored and Moninterest-bearing; due amd
payables (Note 13) 268314419 - demandable TUnsecured
Affittare
Noninterest-bearing: due and
b.) Advances 371,346 2,550 566 demandable Unsecurcd
Cfficer
Noninterest-bearing: due and
o) Advances - 285503 demandable 1 nsecured
P18.509.332
Eev managernent personnel
Nominterest-bearing; due and
Salaries and wages BT2.217.012 B demandable Unsecured
Other short-term employee Moninterest-bearing; due and
benefits 11,250,445 - demandable Unsecured
Noninterest-bearing: due amd
Retiremnent benefits (Note 19) 18,823,770 149,938,499 demandable Unsecurcd
F149,938.499
015
Amount Volume Payable Terms Conditions
Due to related parties ( Trade pavables)
LUlimare Parent Conpany
Noninterest-beanng; due and
c ) Rovalty fee (Motes 10 and 16)  FIR3 522 384 Pl A2 265 demandable Unsecured
Due to related parties {(Non-trade payables
Ultimate Parent Contpany
MNoninterest-bearing; due and
by Advances P15604 463 135,694 463 demandable Unsecured
Affiliarne
Nonintersst-beanng; due and
b.) Advances 2188230 2188220 demandable Unsecured
Officer
Noninterest-beanng; due and
h.) Advimeces 255 303 285303 demandable Unsecured
P18, 137 986
Key management personnel
Noninterest-beanng; due and
Saluries and wages Fid B062TH B- demandaible Unsecured
Other short-term emplovee Noninterest-beanng; due and
benefits 17,450,693 demandable Unsecured
MNoninterest-beaning; due and
Retirement benefits (Note 19) 12693971 34,151,989 demandable Unsecured
P34,151,989

LBC Express Holdings, Inc.
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In the normal course of business, the Group fulfills the delivery of balikbavan boxes and
money remittances, and performs certain administrative functions on behalf of its international
affiliates. The Group charges delivery fees and service fees for the fulfillment of these
services based on agreed rates.

The Group regularly makes advances to and from related parties to finance working capital
requirements and as part of their cost reimbursements arrangement. These unsecured
advances are non-interest bearing and payable on demand.

In 20115, the Group agreed to offset its liabilities to LBCDC relating to royalty fees amounting
to P173.66 million against receivables from LBCDC (sce Note 21).

In prior years, the Group has outstanding advances of P295 00 million to LBC Development
Bank, an entity under common control of LBCDC. In 201 |, management assessed that these
advances are not recoverable. Accordingly, the said asset was written-off from the books in

2011 (see Note 25).

LBCDC (Licensor), the Ultimate Parent Company, granted to the Group (Licensee) the full
and exclusive right to use the LBC Marks within the Philippines in consideration for a
continuing royalty rate of two point five percent (2.5%) for 2006 and 2015 of Licensee’s gross
revenues which is defined as any and all revenue from all sales of products and services,
including all other income of every kind and nature directly and/or indirectly arising from,
related to and/or connected with Licensee’s business operations (including, without limitation,
any proceeds from business interruption insurance, if any), whether for cash or credit,
wherever made, earned, realized or accrued, excluding any sales discounts and/or rebates,
value added tax.

As discussed in Note 12, the Group entered into a loan agreement with BDO which is secured
with real estate mortgage on various real estate propertics owned by the Group’s affiliate, In
consideration of the affiliate’s accommodation to the Group’s request to use these properties
as loan collateral, the Group agreed to pay the affiliate, every April | of the year starting
April 1, 2016, a puarantee fee of 1% of the outstanding loan and until said properties are
released by the bank as loan collateral.

As discussed in Note 13, the BOD of LBCH approved the declaration of cash dividends
amounting to P313.69 million or P0.22 for every issued and outstanding common share. On
November 29, 2016 through a Memorandum of Agreement, LBCDC and LBCH agreed 1o
offset the dividends payable of LBCH to LBCDC against LBCDC s payable to the Group
amounting to P265.31 million (see Note 21). The P2635.31 million pertains to the share in
dividends of LBCDC while the #4338 million pertains to the share of non-controlling
interest,

In 20135, the Group terminated the agreement with LBCX PH, Inc., (formerly
Lovablecommerce.com Corporation), an entity owned by a stockholder, to build and operate a
software recorded under intangible asset amounting to #21.33 million (see Note 23). Such asset
and its related payable was transferred to LBCX . PH, Inc.

In 2016, the Group directly wrote off B3.09 million duc from an affiliate recorded as Trade
receivables - related parties under “Trade and other receivables” in the consolidated statements of
financial position.
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15. Cost of Services

This account consists of:

2016 2015 2014
Cost of delivery and remittance P2,202,333,121  P1.945639.263  P2.060,056,871
Salaries and benefits 1,763,779,517 1,706,004,942 1,796,940, 736
Utilitics and supplics 061,848,568 589 283155 563,017,061
Rent (Note 18) 513,079,995 481,018,056 436,508,689
Depreciation and amortization 196,497,941 191,503,976 2010 892 910
Repairs and maintenance 94,986,163 73,753,014 67,154,192

Retirement benefit expense
(Note 19) 82,137,951 63,699 862 85,066,652
Transportation and travel 46,464,561 51,297 338 54,525 747
Insurance 22,953,471 14,517,977 16,585,803
Others 6,431,801 2813 884 2,741,657
P5,590,513,089 PB5,119.531,467 P5284 490318

16. Operating Expenses
This account consists of:

2016 2015 2004
Salaries and wages P407,292,079 P391,920,328 £334,524,994
Rent (Note 18) 197,940,252 178,146,664 113,848 812
Raoyalty 195,497,630 183,522,384 168,993 879
Advertising and promotion 175,801,246 257,545,289 326,307,171
Professional fees 157,701,239 130 648 982 130,647,175
Utilities and supplies 150,384,187 146,961,164 169,230,554
Travel and representation 101,185,071 200,330,445 T4 476,641
Depreciation and amortization 98,847,164 67,880,465 74,233 349
Taxes and licenses 97,336,343 87.375.167 78,773 997
Claims and losses 89,125,719 20,616,758 23,732,740
Software maintenance costs 54,359,104 53.603.820 49,305,580

Retirement benefit expense
(Note 19) 27,778,715 27870055 13,348,749
Insurance 22927207 9779212 6,605,181
Commission expense 20,042,764 8,844,906 5,960,613
Provision for impairment losscs 15,803,621 31.461.519 6,545 265
Repairs and maintenance 5,987,934 4,567,371 6,667,738
Des and subscriptions 3,788,380 32915703 2879 308
Write-off of receivables 3,215,599 26,642,572 91,393
Others 47,790,937 27160, 186 16,388,640

£1,872.805,197 P1947. 792990 P 602561779

Others comprise mainly of donations and penaltics.
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17. Income Taxes

Prowvision for income tax consists of:

2016 2015 2014
Current P455,428,586 P221,037,708 BP107.011.954
Deferred (44,278,540) 49 594 466 (50,071,154)

B411,150,046 827,632,174 B56,940 800

Details of the Group's net deferred tax assets as at December 31 follow:

2016 2015 2014
Retirement benefit liability P212,833.851 B192 543,624 B162.571 879
Accrued bonus and leave credits 34,764,344 - 52,333,949
Allowance for impairment losses 16,708,496 11,967 409 2,528,954
Deferred lease liability (Note 18) 11,062,231 11,898 523 10,666,163
MCIT 255,394 826,517 1,066,044
NOLCO 209,623 5,699 047 24 825429
Capitalized borrowing costs (628,002) (1,046,671) (1,046,671)
Unrealized foreign exchange
losses (gains) (1,868,793) 3. 756,635 3807780
Others 1,043,226 - 107 404

$274,380,370 P225,645,084 B156,860 938

The movements in net deferred tax asset for the vears ended December 31 are as follows:

2016 2015 2014

December 1 P225,645,084 B256,860,938 B206,985,091
Charged to profit or loss 44,278,540 (49, 504 466) 50,071,154
Excess MCIT over RCIT - 276,504
Applied MCIT against income tax

due (681,629) (282,975) -
Previously unrecognized:

NOLCO - - 6,560,389

MCIT - - 2,374,081
Charged to other comprehensive

income 5,138,375 18,385 083 (9.129.777)

$274,380,370 P225,645,084 P256,860,938

Details of the unrecognized deferred tax assets as at December 31 are as follows:

2016 2015
NOLCO P4,605,778 B3 142 830
MCIT 2,970 -
Allowance for impairment losses on:
Property and equipment 3,509,738 3,509.738
Inventories 2,143,781 2143781
Receivables 567.078 S6T0T8
Other current assets 239,630 239,630
P11,068,975 B0 603,057
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All unrecognized deferred tax assets arise from the standalone balances of LBCH,

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the NOLCO that can be claimed as deductions from future
taxable income and excess MCIT over RCIT that can be credited against furure tax liabilicy
follow. These NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT came from LBCH and other subsidiaries.

NOLCO

2016

Year incurred Amount Used Expired Balance Year of expiry
2016 PG6.244.919 P B P6.244.919 2019
2015 8,543 160 - - 8,543,160 2018
2014 1,809 334 546,077 - 1,263,257 2017
2013 19,120,429 5000461 14,119,968 - 2016
B35.717 842 B5.546,538  PI4.119968 PR16,051,336
2015
Year incurred Amount Used Expired Balance Year of expiry
2015 BE.543.160 B P BE.543.160 2008
2014 41,324,735 39,515,401 1,809 334 2017
2013 19,120,429 - - 19,120,429 2016
2012 75,395 901 22 665,151 52,730,750 - 2015
#144 384 225  B62 180,552 852 730,750 B29472 923
2014
Year incurred Amount Used Expired Balance Year of expiry
2014 P40,061,478  P33.455607 P P6.605,871 2017
2013 17,752,003 - - 17,752,003 2015
2012 73,719,601 15,326,046 58,393,555 2006
2011 131,571,362 43,459,752 BRIIL6I0 - 2014
B263,104, 444  R92241.405 PSR 111,610 BR2751.429
MCIT
2016
Y ear Incurred Amount Used Expired Balance  Expiry Date
2016 B110.506 P- P- B110.506 2019
2015 276,505 276,505 - - 2018
2014 447 430 299572 - 147 858 2017
2013 105,552 105,552 - — 2016
PO39.993 PGE1.629 P- #258.364
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2015
Year Incurred Amount Used Expired Balance  Expiry Date
2015 P276,505 p- p- P276,505 2018
2014 447,430 - - 447,430 2017
2013 168,562 63,010 - 105,552 2016
2012 453,027 219965 233,062 2015
21,345,524 P282 975 P233,062 PE29 487
2014
Year Incurred Amount Used Expired Balance  Expiry Date
2014 Ba44 460 - P- £444 460 2017
2013 168,562 - - 168,562 2016
2012 453,027 453,027 2015
£1,066,049 B B- B1.066,049

The reconciliation between income tax expense at the statutory rate and the actual income tax
expense presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the vears ended

December 31 follows:

2016 2015 2014
Income tax at the statutory income tax rate P397,527.237  B206,07992]1 BGO. 105,313
Tax effects of items not subject to
statutory rate:
Nondeductible expense 8,804,269 47,074,574 #,897.895
Expired NOLCO 4,235,990 15819225 26,416,683
Expired MCIT - 233,062 1.752.491
Movement of unrecognized deferred
tax asscts 1,465,918 1.850.435 (34.364,664)
MNontaxable income (883,368) (425,043) (5,866,918)
P411.150,046  P270.632,174 B36,940.800

15. Lease Commitments

Annual Report 2016

(a) Operating lease

The following are the operating lease agreements entered into by the Group:

. Operating lease agreement covering its current corporate office space for a period of five
vears from October 20, 2016. The lease agreement is renewable at the Group's option at
such terms and conditions which may be agreed upon by both parties. The lease agreement
includes rental rate escalations during the term of the lease. The lease agreement also

requires the Group to pay security deposits,

2. Operating lease agreements covering various service centers and service points within the
Philippines for a period of two to five years, renewable at the Group’s option at such terms
and conditions which may be agreed upon by both partics. These lease agreements include
provision for rental rate escalations including payment of security deposits and advance

rentals.
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3. Operating lease agreement with a local bank covering transportation equipment for a period

of three years. The lease agreement does not include escalation rates on monthly payments.
There are no contingent rents for the above lease agreemenis,

Rent expense was recognized as follows:

2016 2015 2014

Cost of services (Note 15) P513,079,995 B4K1,018,056 B436,508 689
Operating expenses (Note 16) 197,940,252 178,146,664 113,848 812
B711,020,247 P659 164 720 B550 357 501

The Group maintains security deposits arising from the said operating lease agreements
amounting to 22626 million and 820993 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively,

The future minimum lease payments from the foregoing noncancellable operating lease
agreements follow:

2016 2015
P761,315,955 BOYS 488 620
3.346,283,230 3407894223

Mot later than 1 vear
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Deferred lease liability arising from straight line recognition of lease payments amounting to
P36.87 million and P39.66 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are
included in the non-current portion of lease liabilities account in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

Finance lease

These involve leases of transportation equipment which were accounted for as finance leases.

The components of the finance lease obligation as at December 31 arising from this lease are as
follows:

2016 2015
Gross finance lease obligations
Mot later than one year P62.083,010 P52, 583 498
Later than | vear but not later than 5 vears 44,422,597 42143711
106,505,607 94 727 2009
Future finance lease charges on the finance lease
Mot later than one year (11,256,327) (9.533.961)
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years (8,054,301) (7.641.113)
(19,310,628) (17,175,074)
$87,194,979 877,552,135
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The present value of minimum lease payments is as follows:

2016 2015
Not later than 1 year P50.826,683 B43,049 537
Later than | vear but not later than 5 years 36,368.296 34,502,598

P87.194.979 B77,552,135

Interest expense on the above finance lease obligation charged to finance costs amounted to
B23.40 million, B24 45 million and £13.41 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

19. Retirement Benelits

The Group has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering all qualified
employees. The retirement plan is intended to provide for benefit payments to employees
equivalent to 100% to 130% of the employee’s final monthly basic salary for every year of
credited service. Benefits are paid in lump sum upon retirement or separation in accordance with
the terms of the Plan. Any qualified employee who voluntarily resigns from the service of the
Group after completing at least 10 years of service, shall receive a benefit equal to a percentage of
his acerued retirement benefits. The Group updates the actuarial valuation every year by hiring
the services of a third party qualified actuary. The latest actuarial valuation report was as of
reporting date.

The Retirement Plan Trustee, as appointed by the Group in the Trust Agreement executed between
the Group and the duly appointed Retirement Plan Trustee, is responsible for the general
administration of the Retirement Plan and the management of the Retirement Fund. The
Retirement Plan Trustee may seck the advice of a counsel and appoint an investment manager or
managers to manage the Retirement Fund, an independent accountant to audit the Fund and an
actuary to value the Retirement Fund. The Group has no transactions either directly or indirectly
through its subsidiaries or with its employees” retirement benefit fund.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement
pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity,
provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and
other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The Group's retirement plan
meets the minimum retirement benefit specified under Republic Act 7641,
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The major categorics of the Group's plan assets follow:

2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents £10,968,876 B4.198.714
Equity instruments 1,431,516 1,297 363
Debt instruments:
Government bonds 9,348,163 7.656,077
Other bonds §93,558 209 489
Others 152,725 (333,880)

P22,794,838 P13.627.763

All equity and debt instruments held have quoted prices in active market.

The equity mstruments are investment in stocks of a holding company of a conglomerate listed in
the Philippines stock market engaged in various businesses.

The Retirement Trust Fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-
market valuation.

The Group is not required to pre-fund the future defined benefits payable under the Retirement
Plan before they become due. For this reason, the amount and timing of contributions to the
Retirement Fund are at the Group’s discretion. However, in the event a benefit claim arises and
the Retirement Fund is insufficient to pay the claim, the shortfall will then be due and payable by
the Group to the Retirement Fund.

The Retirement Plan Trustee monitors regularly the status of the plan assets and liabilities to
ensurc availability of funds upon retirement of personnel.

The Group expects to contribute #6820 million to the retirement plan in 2017, The retirement
plan does not have a formal funding policy. The funding requirement 1s mainly driven by the
availability of excess fund from the Group’s operations,

The movement in actuarial loss {gain) recognized in other comprehensive income follows:

2016 2015 2014
Beginning of year (B170,537,671)  (P231.821.281) (B201,388.695)
Actuarial loss (gain) from defined benefit
obligation 16,368,951 59,937 337 (32.679874)
Plan asset remeasurement loss 758,958 1,346,273 2247 288
End of vear. gross (153,409,762)  (170.537.671)  (231.821.281)
Deferred tax liability 46,022,929 51,161,301 69 546,385

(R107,386,833)  (BI19376,370)  (P162,274.896)

The principal assumptions used in determining retirement for the defined benefit plans are shown

below:
2016 2015 2014
Discount rate 5.77% to 6,.20% 4.71% o 6. 12%  4.71% to 5.90%
Salary increase 5.00% 5007 50075
Attrition rate 14.31% 22.81% 12.49%,
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Discount rate

The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period
based on high quality bonds with currency and term similar to the estimated term of the benefit
obligation. There is no deep market in high quality corporate bonds in the Philippines and
therefore, the Group used as reference the yields in long-term Philippine Treasury Bonds and
adjusted to reflect the term similar to the estimated term of the benefit obligation as determined
by the actuary.

Salary increase

This is the expected long-term average rate of salary inerease taking into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other market factors. Salary increase comprises of the general
inflationary increases plus a further increase for individual productivity, merit and promotion,
The future salary increase rates are set by reference over the period over which benefits are
expected to be paid.

Attririon rate
The attrition rate is determined based on historical experience of the Group.

Demographic assumptions
Assumptions regarding mortality experience are set based on published startistics and experience
in the Philippines.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of cach
significant assumption on the defined benefit liability as of the end of reporting date, assuming if
all other assumptions were held constant:

2016 2015
Increase Net defined Met defined
(decrease)  benefit liability  benefit liability
Discount rate +1.00% (P85,375,618)  (P45,606,262)
-1.00% 101,845,033 51,012,403
Salary increase +1.00% 97,741,926 44,194,507

=1.00% (83,780,167) (40,505,416)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
is 11.90 years,

Shown below is the maturity analysis of retirement benefit payments up to ten vears;

2016 2015
Less than | year B34,032,237 BT 267,396
More than | vear to 5 years 191,385,358 55,911,329
More than 5 vears to 10 years 474,100,134 282 816,562

P699,517,729  B345995 287
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20). Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Annual Report 2016

The Group has various financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, due from related parties, available-for-sale investments and “short-term investments’
under other current asscts.

The Group's financial liabilities comprise of accounts and other payables, due to related parties,
notes payable, ransmissions liability, finance lease liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities. The
main purpose of these financial liabilitics is to finance the Group's operations,

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk, forcign currency risk and credit risk. The BOD reviews and approves policics for
managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

Price risk

The Group closely monitors the prices of its equity securities as well as macroeconomic and
entity-specific factors which could directly or indirectly affect the prices of these instruments. In
casc of an expected decline in its portfolio of equity securities, the Group readily disposes or
trades the securities for replacement with more viable and less nisky investments,

Such investment securitics are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of instruments
arising either from factors speeific to individual instruments or their issuers, or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market.

The following table shows the effect on income before income tax should the change in the close
share price of quoted and unquoted equity securities occur as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 with
all other variables held constant.

Effect on other comprehensive income

Change in share price 2016 2015
+5.00% P35,485,309 B10,629,84%
-5.00% (35,485,309) (10,629 848)

Tnterest rave risk

The Group i1s not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as the Group’s interest rate on its cash
and cash equivalents and notes payable are fixed and none of the Group’s financial asscts and
liabilities is measured at fair value. The impact of fluctuation on interest rates on the Group’s
finance leases will not significantly impact the results of operations,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk from inability to meet obligations when they become due because of
failure to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding, The Group ensures that sufficient liquid
assets are available to meet short-term funding and regulatory capital requirements,

The Group has a policy of regularly monitoring its cash position to ensure that maturing liabilities
will be adequartely met.

Prudent liquidity nsk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Management believes that cash generated from operations is sufficient to meet daily
working capital requirements,
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Surplus cash is invested into a range of short-dated money time deposits and unit investment trust
fund which seek to ensure the security and liquidity of investment while optimizing yield.

The following summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets based on remaining
contractual undiscounted collections:

108

2016
Due in less than Due in more
One year than one year Tuotal
Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash in bank B939.534,180 - £939,534,180
Cash equivalents 213,305,944 - 213,365,944
Receivables
Trade 1.486,125,587 - 1.486,125,587
Others 14,475,954 - 14,475,954
Due from related parties 1.107,999.329 1.107,999.329
Available-for-sale investments
Quoted - 458,391,174 458,391,174
Unguoted 250,937,154 - 250,937,154
Short-term investment 27,340,771 - 27,340,771
£4,039,778,919 458,391,174 £4,498,170,093
2015
Due in less than Due in more
one vear than one year Teodal
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in bank BTO1 383,179 B BTO1,383,179
Cash equivalents 19,189 839 = 19,1589 839
Receivables
Trade 1, 433,126,470 - 1, 433,126,470
Oihers 13,742 490 - 13,742 490
Due from related parties 1,321,346.,663 - 1.321,346,663
Available-for-sale investments - 212,596,951 212,596,951
Short-term investiment 5,001,500 5,001, 5000
B3 SR3B00, 141 B212 596,951 B3 796,397 002

Except as indicated, the Group's financial lhabilities based on undiscounted cash flows as shown
below are due and expected to be paid within 12 months after the reporting period, which is the
carlier of the contractual maturity date or the expected settlement date:

2016

Due in less than Due in more

one year than one year Total
Agcounts payable and accrued expenses

Trade payvable B563,935,835 | B563,935,835
Accruals 493,249,605 - 493,249,605
Others 31,322,861 - 31,322,861
Due 1o related parties 18,500,332 - 18,500,332
Notes payable 705,273,544 TUG6,882, 740 1.502,156,284
Transmissions liability 467,284,705 - 467,284,705
Lease liabilities 62,083,010 44.422.59% 106,505,600
Oiher noncurrent liabilitics - 34.477.440 34.477.440
#2.341,659,072 BRTS, 782,776 #3,217,441,848
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2015
Due in less than Due in more

one year than one year Taotal

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Trade payable BOHRT 292 635 = BORT 292 655
Accruals 567,502 422 - S67,502 422
Others 18,108 345 - 15,108 345
Due o related parties 18,137 986 18,137,986
Motes payable 1043663, 19 = 1.043,663, 196
Transmissions liability 508,139,757 - 508,139,757
Lease liabilities 52,583 498 42,143,711 94,727,209
Other noncurrent liabilities - 43 553 548 43,553,548

B2 805 427 859 P85,697,259 B2,9581,125,118

MNotes payable and lease liabilities include future interest payments,

Payable to government agencies amounting to 206 40 million and #559.13 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are considered nonfinancial liabilities,

The Group expects to generate cash flows from its operating activities mainly on sale of services.
The Group also has sufficient cash and adequate amount of credit facilities with banks and its
ultimate parent company to meet any uncxpected obligations,

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of financial assets and financial
liabilitics will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates to the Group’s operating activities when
revenue or expenses are denominated in a different currency from the Group’s functional
Currency.

The Group operates internationally through its various interational affiliates by fulfilling the
money remittance and cargo delivery services of these related parties. This exposes the Group to
foreign exchange risk primarily with respect to Euro (EUR), Hongkong Dollar (HKD), Australian
Dollar (AUD) Taiwanese Dollar (TWD), US Dollar (USD), Great British Pound (GBP) and
Canadian Dollar (CAD). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group enters into short-term foreign currency forwards, if needed, to manage its foreign
currency risk from foreign currency denominated transactions.
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Information on the Group's forcign currency-denominated monetary assets recorded under “trade
and other receivables” in the consolidated statements of financial position and their Philippine
Peso equivalents follow:

2016

Foreign currency Peso equivalent
Euro 2,851,734 £150,600,073
Hongkong Dollars 17,813,579 114,363,177
Australian Dollars 2,768,961 103,033,039
Taiwanese Dollars 59,719,397 93,759,453
US Dollars 1,249,172 62,171,290
Great British Pound 194,844 12,039.411

The iranslation exchange rotes wsed were BI2.80 o EUR I, Ba.42 0o HED I, R3T21 i AUD ), BI57 o THD |, B49.77 f0 USD 1
v PEITE to GRP T an 20046,

2015

Foreign currency Peso equivalent
Euro 2817963 Bl140. 729072
Taiwanese Dollars 6,803,891 88,165,642
Hongkong Dollars 12,006,592 T2.880,013
Australian Dollars 2,046,081 69 628,136
Canadian Dollars 1,433 332 50,768,619
US Dollars 955,395 44,970,443

The translation exchange rotes wsed were P99 fo EUR T, P1LAS 10 TWD I, PA.O7 o HEKTY |, P34.03 to AUD T, P35.42 10 CAD
and P47.07 ro US| in 20105,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates, with all variables held constant, of the Group's income before tax (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,

Reasonably possible change in foreign Increase (decrease) in

exchange rate for every two units of income betfore tax

Philippine Peso 2016 2015
B2 P169,195.374 B158 866,508
(2) (169,195,374) {158 866,508)

There 1s no impact on the Group’s equity other than those already affecting profit or loss. The
movement in sensitiviry analysis is derived from current observations on fluctuations in dollar
average exchange rates.

The Group recognized B143.23 million and 8108.11 million foreign exchange gains - net, for the
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, arising from settled transactions and
translation of the Group's cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and other payables.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss,

Credit risk is monitored and actively managed by way of sirict requirements relating to the

creditworthiness of the counterparty at the point at which the transactions are concluded and also
throughour the entire life of the ransactions, and also by way of defining risk limits,
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The maximum credit risk exposure of the Group’s financial assets is equal to the carrying amounts
in the consolidated statements of financial position.

There are no collaterals held as sceurity or other credit enhancements attached to the Group's

financial assets.

As of December 31, 2016 and 20135, the eredit quality per class of financial assets is as follows:

2016
Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past due and/or
Substandard Individually
High Grade Stundard Grade Impaired Tutal
Cash in hanks and cash equivalents  P1,152,900,124 - k- - F1.152,900,124
Trade and other receivables 1375310530 - - 125281011 1.500,601.541
e from related parties 1107999 329 - - - 1.107,999 329
Short-term investmemn 27,340,771 - - - 27.340,771
P3.663 560,754 L4 [ P125,281.011 P3, 788,841,765
2015
Meither Past Due nor lmpaired Past dueandior
I ihueally
High Girade Standard  Substandard Grade Impaired Total
Cash in hanks and cash equivalems PEIOSTI00E B P B PRIOITIO0NE
Trade and other receivables 1324437845 122 431,115 1 A46, 868 960
Dwe from related parties 1.321,346,663 1,321.346,663
Shorl-term invesiment S50011,500 - - - 5011500
P3A461, 360,026 B B P122.431,115 P31 SRE RO0, 141

The Group's basis in grading its receivables are as follow:

High grade - these are receivables which have a high probability of collection (i.c.. the

counterparty has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on receivables

readily enforceable).

Standard - these are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation and the
financial ability of the counterparty to pay but have been outstanding for a certain period of time.

Substandard - these are receivables that can be collected provided the Group makes persistent

cffort to colleet them.

Cash in banks and cash equivalents are deposited/placed in banks that are stable as they qualify
cither as universal or commercial banks. Universal and commercial banks represent the largest
single group, resource-wide, of financial institutions in the country the Group is operating, They
offer the widest variety of banking services among financial institutions. These financial assets
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are classified as high grade due to the counterparties” low probability of insolvency.

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the aging analyses of the Group's past due and/or impaired
receivables are as follows:

2016
Impaired
Past Due but not Impaired Financial
1 to 30 dayvs 31 to 90 davs  Over 90 dayvs Assels Taotal

Trade and other receivables P32 384,030  PBEERO,T41  PIK321255  PBSS694.985 P125.281,011
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2015
. ) Impaired
Past e but not Impaired Financial
| o 30 days 31 to 90 days  Owver 90 days Assets Total
Trade and other receivables BSO299498  BI4OBE359  BIRIS1L894  BIOHO] 364 B122431.115

There are no collaterals held by the Group with respect to trade receivables that have been
identified as past due but not impaired.

Capital Management

The Group's objectives in managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide sharcholder returns and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and thus, increase the value of shareholder
investment,

In order to maintain a healthy capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debis. Management has assessed that the
Group is self-sufficient based on historical and current operating results,

The capital that the Group manages is equal to the total equity as shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position at December 31, 2016 and 2015 amounting to B2 462 99 million
and P1,627.70 million, respectively,

21.

Fair Values and Offsetting Arrangements

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of the financial
instruments are as follows:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from/to
related parties, short-term cash investments, accounts and other payvables, transmissions liability,
and the current portion of notes payable and lease liabilities approximate their fair value. These
financial instruments are relatively short-term in nature.

The fair value of quoted AFS investment is the current closing price while the unquoted AFS
investment s based on the published net asset value per unit as of reporting date.

The estimated fair value of long-term portion of notes payable is based on the discounted value of
future cash flow using applicable interest rates ranging from 4. 14% to 4.20%.

The fair value of the long-term portion of lease liabilities is based on the discounted value of
future cash flow using applicable interest rates ranging from 7.5% to 8.00% for 2016 and 2015.

The estimated fair value of other noncurrent liabilities is based on the discounted value of future
cash flow using apphcable rate of 12.28%.
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Fair Value Hierarchy
The Company uses the following hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 11 quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities

Level 2:  other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3:  techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data

The quantitative disclosures on fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as of December 31,
2016 and 2015 follow:

1016
Fair value measurements using
Ouated prices in
active markets  Skrmificant offer Significant
for identical observable  unobservable

assets inpuis inputs
Carrying values Tutal {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Quioted equity securities P45SE391,174  P4SEIDL1T4 P45RA91,174 P- P-
Unquoted unit investment
trust fund 150,937,154 150,937,154 - 150,937,154 -
Liabilitles for which fair value are disclosed
Long-term noles payable 692 S0, M0 GO9S,225.205 - - G5, 125205
Mom-current lease liabilities 73242401 T7.A400,097 = = TT AT
Orher noncurent liabilitics 34,477 440 6 B07,6033 36,807,633
2015
Fair value mensurements using
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for ofler Sigmificant
identical  observable unobservable
Axscls II'II'IIIlh IT.|FII.I|K
Carrying values Tonal (Lewvel 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Quoted equity securitics F212.596.951 P212,5%.951 P212.5%.951 - B-
Liabilitics for which fair value are discloscd
Non-current lease labilities 74164341 75,518,246 75518246
Other noncurrent liabilities 43,553,548 47,055,612 47,055,612

There was no transfer between Level | and Level 2 in the period.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position where the Group currently has a legally enforceable night to set-off
the recognmized amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the net asset
settles the liability simultaneously.
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The following table represents the recognized financial instruments that are offset as of
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and shows in the ‘Net” column what the net impact
would be on the Group's consolidated statements of financial position as a result of the offsetting

rights.

December 31, 2006
Gross Amount Offsetting Net Amount
Duc from related parties (a) P1.373,313,748 P~ PL3T3313.748
Dividends payable (a) - {265,314.419) (265.314.419)
#1,373,313,748 (B265,314.419)  #1,107,999.329

December 31, 2015
Gross Amount Offselting Mel Amount
Due from related parties (b) P1,571,948,066 (P232.463.417)  P1,339.484.649
Due to related parties (b) (252,429 668) - (252,429,668)
Rovalty pavable (b) 173,657,922 173,657,922
Purchase of LBCE (¢) - 58,805 495 58,805.495
(252,429 668) 232,463,417 (19.966,251)
PI1,319.518,398 - BI1,319518.398

a. The Parent Company’s dividends payvable to LBCDC has been offset against due from
LBCDC. The Parent Company and LBCDC have the intention of settling on a net basis,

b. The Group’s rovalty payable to LBCDC has been offset against due from LBCDC.

¢.  As discussed in Note 2, the Parent Company’s payable to LBCDC arising from purchase of
LBCE has been offset against due from LBCDC,

22, Segment Reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based on the information reviewed by the
exceutive committee for purposes of allocating resources and assessing performance,

The Group’s two main operating segments comprise of logistics and money transfer services. The
exceutive committee considers the business from product perspective.

The Group's logistics products are geared toward both retail and corporate clients. The main
services offered under the Group’s logistics business are domestic and international courier and
freight forwarding services (by way of air, sea and ground transport).

Money transfer services comprise remittance serviees (including branch retail services, prepaid
remittance cards and online and mobile remit) and bills payment collection and corporate
remittance payout services. Money transfer services include international presence through its
branches which comprises international inbound remittance services.

The Group only reports revenue line item for this segmentation.  Assets and liabilitics and cost and
expenses are shared together by these two segments and, as such, cannot be reliably separated.

The Group has no significant customer which contributes 10.00% or more to the revenue of the
Group.
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The following table presents the amount of revenues gencrated from these scgments:

2016 2015 2014

Logistics
Retail £4,964,000,749 P4,091,284,562 P3.673,617.337
Corporaic 2,557.865,998 2,199,007 266 1.968, 288,045

7.521,866,747 (5,290,291 828 5.641,905,382

Money transfer services
Domestic 1,058,448,930 1.186,850,428 1.317.278.,020
International inbound 115,086,945 200 332,208 97.044,436
1,173,535,875 1,396,182,636 1,414,322 456
#8,695,402,622 B7.680.474.464 B7,056,227 838

The revenue of the Company consists mainly of sales to external customers, Revenue arising
from service fees charged to affiliates amounted to P400.29 million and P386.36 million in 2016
and 2015, respectively.

Seasonality of ration

The Group's operation experiences increased volume in remittance ransmission as well as cargo
throughout the second quarter and fourth quarter of the vear, particularly during the start of the
school year and during the holiday season.
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23, Note to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
In 2016, the Group has the following non-cash transactions under:

Operating activities
a.) Offserting of due from LBCDC against dividends pavable amounting to P265 31 million
recorded under *Due from related parties’.

Investing activities
a.) Unpaid acquisitions of property and equipment amounted to P60, 75 million during the vear.

Financing activities
a.) Accrued interest amounted to £1.72 million.

In 2015, the Group has the following non-cash transactions under:

Operating activities

a.) Offserting of royalty payvable to LBCDC amounting to B173.66 million against due from
LBCDC. The net effect of the offsetting of the financial instruments is reflected as part of the
‘Due from related parties’ in the statements of financial position.

Investing activities
a.) Unpaid acquisitions of property and equipment amounted to 876,30 million, B52.14 million of
which pertains to purchases of computer hardware under long-term payments

b.) Reversal of intangible assets and related liability amounting to B21.33 million.
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24, Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

The following table presents information necessary to calculate earnings per share:

2016 2015 2014

Net income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company #I21,605,612 P416,300,890 Bl43 410244
Divided by the weighted average

number of common shares

outstanding 1,425865471 1.425 865471 1,425 865471
Basic/diluted earnings per share #0.65 0,29 80,10

The basic /diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were
computed as follow:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Met income attributable o the sharcholders
of the Parent Company (a) £921,605,612 B416, 300,596 B143.410.244
Common stocks issucd at the beginning of
the period 1425865471 b B9 (N 400 B0 (1K)

Common stocks issued during the year 1,384 966,471 1,384,966,471
Weighted average number of common
stocks oulslanding (18] 1.425,865,471 1.425 865471 1,425 865,471

Basic and diluted carm'nﬁs per share (a/b) £.65 £0,29 Bi) 10

The basic and dilutive earnings per share are the same due to the absence of dilutive potential
common shares.

The denominator used in 2014 represents the issued and outstanding shares as at December 31,
2015 to reflect retroactively, the completed acquisition of LBCE which was accounted for similar
to a reverse acquisition (see Note 2).

25, Other Matters

Closure of LBC Developmeni Bank, fnc.
On September 9, 2011, the BSP, through Monetary Board Resolution No. 1354, resolved to close
and place LBC Development Bank Inc.’s (the “Bank™) assets and affairs under receivership.

On December 8, 201 1, the Philippine Deposit Insurance Company (PDIC), as the official receiver
and hiquidator of closed banks, demanded on behalf of the Bank that LBC Holdings USA
Corporation (LBC US) pay for its alleged outstanding obligations to LBC Bank amounting to
approximately P1.00 billion, a claim that LBC US has denied as being baseless and unfounded.
No further demand on this matter has been made by the PDIC since then, although there are no
assurances that the claim has been waived or abandoned in whole or in part, or that the PDIC will
not institute relevant proceedings in court or serve another demand letter to LBC US.

In relation to the Bank's closure and receivership, as discussed in Note 14, the receivables
amounting to #295,00 million were written-off in 2011,
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On March 17 and 29, 2014, the PDIC s external counsel sent letters to LBCE, demanding
collection of the alleged amounts totaling £1.79 billion. On March 24 and 29, 2014, July 29,
20104, June 17, 2015 and June 26, 2015, the same legal counsel sent collection letters addressed to
LBC Systems, Inc. [Formerly LBC Mundial Inc.] [Formerly LBC Mabuhay USA Corporation],
demanding the payment of amounts aggregating to 891 1.59 million, all on behalf of the Bank.

On May 15, 2015, the Department of Justice (“DOJ™) issued subpoenas to some of the
stockholders of the Bank, directing them to submit their counter-affidavits in connection with the
conduct of a preliminary investigation over a complaint filed by the PDIC. The preliminary
investigation is an inquiry to determine whether there is sufficient ground that the offenses alleged
have been committed, and if trial should be held, The stockholders submitted their counter-
affidavits, and the matter 1s now submitted for resolution by the DOJ.

On Movember 2, 2015, the Bank, through PDIC, filed a civil case against LBCE and LBCDC
before the regional trial court of Makati (“RTC™), among other respondents, for a total collection
of an alleged amount of 21,82 billion (the “Complaint™). The case is in relation to the March 17,
2014 demand letter representing collection of unpaid service fees due from June 2006 to August
2011 and service charges on remittance transactions from January 2010 to September 2011, The
increase in the amount from the demand letter to the amount contained in the case was explained
by PDIC in the complaint as atiributable to their discovery that the supposed paymenis of LBCE
seem to be unsupported by actual cash inflow to the Bank.

On December 28, 20135, the summons, together with a copy of the Complaint and the writ of
preliminary attachment, were served on the former Corporate Sceretary of LBCE. The writ of
preliminary attachment resulted in the following: (a) tagging of the 1,205,974 632 shares of LBCH
in the name of LBCDC, and (b) the attachment of various bank accounts of LBCE totaling B6.90
million. The tagging of the shares in the record of the stock transfer agent has the effect of
preventing the registration or recording of any transfers of shares in the records, unless the writ of
artachment is lified, quashed or discharged.

On January 12, 2016, LBCE and LBCDC, among other defendants, filed with the RTC, a separate
Motion to Dismiss the Complaint. On January 21, 2016, LBCE and LBCDC filed their Urgent
Motion to Approve the Counterbond and Discharge the Writ of Artachment,

On February 17, 2016, the RTC granted LBCE and LBCDE’s motion and issued the order to lift
and set aside the writ of preliminary attachment. The order to lift and set aside the preliminary
attachment directs the sheriff of the court to deliver to LBCE and LBCDC all propertics
previously garmished pursuant to the writ of preliminary attachment. The counterbond delivered
by LBCE and LBCDC shall stand in place of the properties so released and shall serve as security
to satisfy any final judgment in the case.

In a joint resolution dated June 28, 2016 (the “Joint Resolution™), the RTC resolved to deny the
Motions to Dismiss filed by the defendants, including LBCE. On July 18, 2016, LBCE, together
with the other defendants, filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution. PDIC then
filed its Comment/ Opposition on August 10, 2016, followed by the defendants” reply on

August 26, 2016, PDIC’s Rejoinder on September 26, 2016, and defendants’ Sur-Rejoinder on
Movember 16, 2016. Thereafier, in an Order dated January 26, 2017, the Motion for
Reconsideration was deemed submitted for resolution. On February 23, 2017, LBCE received the
RTC’s resolution denying the Motion for Reconsideration of the Joint Resolution. On

February 28, 2017, LBCE filed a Motion for Extension of Time to File Answer, asking for
additional period of 15 days, or until March 13, 2017 to file Answers. The ultimate outcome of
the case cannot presently be determined.
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In relation to the above case, in the opinion of management and in concurrence with its legal
counsel, any liability of LBCE is not probable and estimable at this point in time,

26, Subsequent Events

On March 8, 2017, the BOD of LBCE approved the declaration of cash dividends amounting to
£843 36 million or PO.81 for every issued and outstanding common share.
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